9:00 a.m.

Sl

BOARD OF UNION COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

REGULAR MEETING DOCUMENT #202400364
AGENDA 05/9/24 04:45:54 PM
May 14, 2024 1 of 1

BY Devian Fields

Call to order

Pledge of Allegiance

Approval of agenda and minutes
Hospital Report
Discussion/Possible Action Items

9:00 - Audit Presentation - Chris Garner - Pattillo, Brown, and Hill, LLP
10:00 - Salary Plan Presentation - Vince Yermal - S Resource, Inc.

i

ii.
iii.

iv.

vi.

Vii.
viii.
ix.
X.
xi.
xii.
xiii.

Road Closure Applications - Portion of Snyder Rd and Portion of Cedar
Creek Road - Kevin Kenney

Resolution 2024-36 Audit Acceptance

Resolution 2024-37 Acceptance of Position Classification and Salary Plan
Update

Resolution 2024-38 BAR Special Revenue Grant - SOS Grant

Resolution 2024-39 BAR Jail-Detention

Resolution 2024-40 Amending Section 10.4 and 10.5 of Personnel Policy
Manual

Proclamation May Motorcycle Awareness Month

Approval of Bills

Inventory Items Disposition - Road Department International Water Truck

Healthcare Assistance - Approval of Claims

County Travel Requests

ARPA Funding

Budget Hearing

10:30 a.m. Citizen’s Forum

Golden Spread - Ferdinand Garcia

e County Manager Report
e Road Superintendent
e Emergency Service Coordinator Report
e Elected Officials Reports
Adjourn

As of 5/9/2024

Next Meeting June 11, 2024 @ 9:00



BOARD OF UNION COUNTY COMMISSION
REGULAR MEETING
April 9, 2024

BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT:

Chairman Clayton F. Kiesling Commissioner W. Carr Vincent Commissioner Lloyd ‘Red’ Miller
OTHERS PRESENT:

Clerk Brenda Green Manager Brandy Thompson Treasurer Shea Arnett

Assessor Hollie Sandoval Sheriff Curtis Skaggs HR Cheryl Garcia

Road Superintendent Gary Wright  Emergency Manager Kris Lawrence Road Admin Rachel Farnum

GUESTS:

Tammie Stump — CEO, Union County General Hospital

Melissa Prante — CFO, Union County General Hospital

Amanda Boggs — CNO, Union County General Hospital

Kristen Christy CUCED Director Lynette Keeth COC Director Gary Hisaw

At 9:00 a.m., Chairman Kiesling called the meeting to order in the Commission Chambers located in the Union
County Administration Building. The pledge of allegiance was recited.

Commissioner Vincent moved to approve the agenda and the regular meeting minutes of March 5, 2024.
Commissioner Miller seconded. There was no further discussion. Vote: ALL AYE. The minutes were signed.

HOSPITAL REPORT

Tammie Stump, CEO, reported on statistics for March. Before the meeting, the “County Commissioner
Monthly Hospital Report, Union County General Hospital, Tammie Stump, CEO, April S, 2024”, was distributed
to the board. Items covered included the following (but not limited to the following): Provider Recruitment
Update; Financial Assistance; Business/Financial Update; Compliance; Radiology; Plant Services; Therapy
Services; Pharmacy; Laboratory/lnfection Control; Union County/Des Moines Health Centers; IT;
HVAC/Vestibule/Cryogenic Tank 3000 gallon/Grade Survey.

Melissa Prante, CFO, reported on financials for February. Before the meeting, the “Clayton Health Systems,
Inc. Union County General Consolidated Executive Financial Summary, 8" month FYE 2024”, and, the “Clayton
Health Systems March 24, 2024 MOR Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, Period ending February 29,
2024”, was distributed to the board. Items covered included the following (but not limited to the following):
Key Statistics; Statement of Revenue and Expenses — YTD; Balance Sheet.

Amanda Boogs, CNO, reported on the following (but not limited to the following): Nursing; Swing Bed; Social
Work Consults; Trauma.



DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION ITEMS
RESOLUTION 2024-34 HEALTH COUNCIL

A proposed resolution recognizing the Union County Health Council as the official Health Council for Union
County for the purpose outlined in the County and Tribal Health Council Act.

Commissioner Vincent moved to approve Resolution 2024-34, Union County Health Council. Commissioner
Miller seconded. There was no further discussion. VOTE: ALL AYE. Resolution signed.

RESOLUTION 2024-35 UNION COUNTY VEHICLE ACCIDENT PREVENTION POLICY

A proposed resolution defining Union County’s vehicle accident prevention policy.

Commissioner Miller moved to approve Resolution 2024-35, Union County Vehicle Accident Prevention Policy.
Commissioner Vincent seconded. There was no further discussion. VOTE: ALL AYE. Resolution signed.

CITIZENS FORUM

Steven Salas, representing Ben Ray Lujan’s office, spoke to the commission regarding Congressionally directed
spending. Union County has not applied for this type of spending in the past, but may consider doing so in the
future. :

At 9:54 a.m., the meeting recessed for a short break.
At 10:02 a.m., the meeting resumed.

CITIZENS FORUM con’t

CUCED Executive Director Lynette Keeth provided several reports to the commission and the annual request
for funding for FY25. She addressed accomplishments to date, and a brief overview of plans for FY25.
Chamber of Commerce Director Greg Hisaw gave an over view of what’s happening at the Chamber, and
submitted the request for funding for FY25.

SUBDIVISION EXEMPTION — LILES AND SACHES

Proposed subdivision claims of exemption from Vickie Liles and James Sachse were presented to the
commission for approval. The parcel of land is located in Sec.9, T24N, R28E.

Commissioner Vincent moved to approve the Subdivision Claim of Exemptions presented by Liles and Sachse.
Commissioner Miller seconded. There was no further discussion. VOTE: ALL AYE. Motion carried.

ASSESSORS ANNUAL REPORT
Assessor Sandoval provided the commission with copies of the Annual report, gave an overview of included
information, and answered questions from the board.



BANKING SERVICES

Treasurer Arnett reported on recent meetings with the local banks for proposed services and fees for county

funds. A comparative report was provided to the commission. The commission directed Treasurer Arnett to go
out for RFP from the local banks.

APPROVAL OF BILLS
Bills in the amount of $369,814.66 were presented for review.

Commissioner Vincent moved to approve bills in the amount of $369,814.66, with the addition of the
quarterly payment for the Extension Office. Commissioner Miller seconded. There was no further discussion.
VOTE: ALL AYE. Motion carried. ‘

INVENTORY ITEMS DISPOSITION — ROAD DEPARTMENT INTERNATIONAL WATER TRUCK
There were no items presented for disposition.

HEALTHCARE ASSISTANCE — APPROVAL OF CLAIMS
Two claims were presented for approval. :

Commissioner Vincent moved to approve payment of the two claims presented. Commissioner Miller
seconded. There was no further discussion. VOTE: ALL AYE. Motion carried. .

COUNTY TRAVEL REQUESTS

Josh Valdez will be attending OSHA training in Albuquerque, Emergency Services Coordinator Kris Lawrence
will attend two conferences, Clerk Green and staff will attend Election School. All travel approved.

ARPA FUNDING

Mgr. Thompson gave an update on proposed projects utilizing ARPA funding. Items discussed included the
following (but not limited to the following): Replacing sidewalks around the County Admin Building; Software
program for personnel management.

COUNTY MANAGER REPORT

Mgr. Thompson reported on the following (but not limited to the following): Purchase of the former
magistrate court building is complete; Needed renovations to the building to accommodate the sheriff’s
office; Updated salary plan is forthcoming; Update on NMFA loans for the hospital.

ROAD SUPERINTENDENT REPORT

Road Superintendent Gary Wright gave an update on the problem of tumbleweeds accumulating on roads
around the county, and discussed options for disposing used tires.

EMERGENCY SERVICES COORDINATOR REPORT
3



Coordinator Kris Lawrence addressed issues with the current Burn Ordinance, and suggested possible changes.
The board will review the ordinance, and start the process to make changes.

ELECTED OFFICIALS REPORTS

Treasurer Arnett reminded that 2" half taxes are due by May 10'™.

Clerk Green reported that she secured federal grant money available thru the Secretary of State’s office to be
used for election related items. The funding will be used to purchase an HVAC unit for the tabulator storage
building, and purchase portable power units and accompanying equipment for election day polling locations
and the clerks office.

Commissioner Miller asked who could be contacted regarding the condition of the Grenville cutoff. It is a state
highway, and multiple efforts to get it repaired have not been successful. Mgr. Thompson will make some
calls.

Chairman Kiesling gave an overview of the recent Legislative Round-up meeting in Las Vegas.

At 11:47 a.m., the meeting recessed for lunch.
At 1:31 p.m., the meeting resumed.

At 1:32 p.m., Commissioner Vincent moved to go into Executive Session Pursuant to NMSA 1978, Section 10-
15-1 (H) 2 Limited Personnel Matters. Commissioner Miller seconded. There was no further discussion. VOTE.
Commissioner Vincent — YES, Commissioner Miller — Yes, Chairman Kiesling — YES. Motion carried.

At 2:19 p.m., Commissioner Vincent moved to come out of Executive Session, and affirmed that matters
discussed in the closed session were limited to only to those specified in the motion for closure. No action was
taken during the closed session. Commissioner Miller seconded. There was no further discussion. VOTE:
Commissioner Vincent — YES, Commissioner Miller — YES, Chairman Kiesling — YES. Motion carried.

BUDGET HEARING

Mgr. Thompson provided copies of the draft FY25 budget to the board, elected officials, and department
heads. A review of the general fund and various departments was done. Further review will be done at the
May meeting.

ADJOURN: At 3:12 p.m., Commissioner Vincent moved to adjourn. Commissioner Miller seconded. There
was no further discussion. Vote: ALL AYE. Motion carried.

Meeting Announcements: The next regular meeting will be held on Tuesday, May 14, 2024 at 9:00 a.m. The
next Joint Communication meeting will be held on Tuesday, June 11, 2024, at 10:00 a.m.

Board of Union County Commissioners
ATTEST Union County, New Mexico

SEAL




Brenda L. Green — County Clerk

Clayton F. Kiesling - Chairman

W. Carr Vincent - Vice Chairman

Lloyd ‘Red’ Miller - Member



CLAYTON HEALTH SYSTEMS
APRIL 24, 2024 MOR
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Period Ending March 31, 2024

INCOME STATEMENT:

Gross patient revenue for March is $1.76M; $152k > budget; $113k > PY.
Total net patient revenue for the month after CA was $1.2M.

Total other revenue for the month is $126k.

County tax subsidy revenue is estimated at $84k.

Total MTD net operating revenue is $1.4M; $220k > budget; $156k > PY.
Operating expenses for the month are $1.4M; $10k > budget; $29k < PY.
Operating gain of $51k and EBIDA gain of $111k.

N oAM=

YTD Budget to Actual Variances is as follows:
Gross Patient Revenue is over budget by $1.96M.
Total Net Operating Revenues are over our YTD budget by $1.5M.
Total Operating Expenses are under YTD budget by $631k.
Salary/Benefits are under budget YTD by $184k.
Professional fees/Purchased Services are under budget by $2k.
Pharmacy, Medical, Other Supplies are over budget by $53k.
Other operating expenses (postage, subscriptions, dues, licenses, taxes,
maintenance, lease, utilities, travel, and education) are under budget by $411Kk.
Includes physician recruiting, audit invoices and 340B management fees.
Depreciation and Interest are under budget by $87k.

BALANCE SHEET:

8. UCGH had cash and cash equivalents of $ 756k.
9. March had CD balances total $838k.

10. AR Mill Levy and GRT balance $115k.

11. Net Patient AR is $2.11M.

12. AP Manual accruals is $64Kk.

13. CR for 2022 has an estimated receivable of $41k.
14. CR for 2023 has an estimated payable of 30k.
15. March Days Cash on Hand is 19 days.









Kevin Lee Kenney
PO Box 352
Texline, TX 79087

April 29, 2024

Brandy Thompson
Union County Manager
200 Court Street

PO Box 430

Clayton, NM 88415

Dear Ms. Thompson,

Included with this letter are two applications for partial county road vacations located on Cedar
Creek Ranch. The first is for a portion of Snyder Road (A014) that serves no other landowner, or
other abutting landowner, and does not serve a mail route, school bus route, or a residence.
Furthermore, there is no access to state land from this section of the road. It is an area of the
ranch in which we have had frequent problems with trespassing, trash dumping, theft, vandalism,
and other criminal activity. Being able to close this portion of the road would be helpful in
securing the ranch and our private property without hindering any legitimate access.

The second application is for the vacation of a portion of Cedar Creek Road (A007), which is the
road that serves our current headquarters. This portion of the road is surrounded by private
property that serves no other landowner, or other abutting landowner, and does not serve a mail
route, school bus route, or a residence. Furthermore, there is no access to state land from this
section of the road. The closure of this portion of the road will not create a burden on the road
system, as Sofia Road (A115) to the north is a smoother, faster, and safer connecting county
road. This road vacation would be beneficial in allowing us to provide safety for the keeping of
our horses, would allow us to continue to utilize horse traps, weaning pastures, and access to
corrals which are all critical to our ranching operation. Additionally, it will allow us the full use
of our infrastructure which is located on both sides of the county road and would help mitigate
theft and vandalism, which we have experienced all too frequently.

We would respectfully appreciate these requests being considered by the Union County
Commissioners. We have discussed this and traveled these roads with Road Superintendent
Wright, who is in agreement with these closures. We have included maps with the portions of
cach road closure requested marked. If any further information is needed, please let us know.

Best regards,

Kevin Lee Kenney



PRUHCATION FOR ROAD CLOSURD

Covmes now Kevin Lee Kennay swehoser uddress s PO Bax 352, Texiing, Toxas 78087
and whase lelephone number is _ 806-282-7000 and hereby apply Lo e Union

Counly Board of County Commissioners for the closure of acounty road or portion thereof, and
in supprart of satd applicarion state as (ollows:

The county road name of the road we seek to close s __ Snvder Bosd — ADT4

The description of the portion of the road we seek to close beging and ends as lollows:

From 36.309482, -103.60707 1w 3639975, - 105 61140 (Teah B E Secton 153
Approximately 1 2 miles which onda ot Dick Snyder's former residenca. This streteh of road s surmounded by
privale, deeded tand and serves no othor landownar.

The mames, addresses and phone nuntbers of all persons who have a legal, equitable or
leasohold interest in the property ure:

Name{s} Address Phone Number

I Kovin Les Kenney PO Box 352, Texling, Texas 79087 BUG-282-7000

h|

The roud or porton of the road we seek o close (vbwes) (does qot) provicde aceess W
I ' P m——
pubhi lands, pither Federal oo state,

We (hye) frmemmemercontacted the Union County Road Superintendent and made him
aware oof tim» request,

Llate: Lf"gwﬁ?“ﬂ OAH

Petilioner

Potitionor



Appliverion foar Reoad Clesuse

Pagpe 2

We e wisdersipned named above as the holders of a legal, equilable or lessew interest in the
Lands adjoining the above deseribed road Lor which closure is souyht hereby agres fo rovad
closure by the Union County Board of County Commissioners. WE UNDERSTAND THAL BY
AGREEING O THIS CLOSURLE, W HBRERY ACKNOWTIEDGE THAT WE CONSENT TO
THE TERMINATION OF QUR ABILITY TO USE THIS ROAL AS A PUBLIC HHGHTWAY AND
ANY PUBLIC MATNTEN ANCE OF THIS ROAD (QR ANY CLOSED PORTION| STTATL
CTASTSHTOUL D THE COUNTY COMMISSION AGREETO THE CLOSURE.

 YH-29-2024 /

Diate



APTTICATION FOR ROAD CLOSURR

Comes now _ Kevin Lee Kennay cwhose address s PO Box 3532, Texing, Texas 79087
arl whose telephone number is A0R-282-7000 _and hereby apply o the Union

County Board of County Conunissioners for the closure of a county road or purtion thereef, and
in support of saicd application state as follows:

The county road name o the poad wo seek fo closs s Cedar Srook Poad — a007 .

The deseription af the portion of e road we seek to close hegins and ends as lellows:
From 3642347, «103.051088 to 36.45265 103 58648 (T24N B31 L Sectan 11}
From Coyote Mosa 10 the northern section of the Remuda. roughly 2 miles of road that s fully
surounded by private fand, This section of romd indudes our headguarnars.,

The names, addresses amd phone nmbers ol all persons who have a legal, equilable or
feaschold mterest in the property are

Nama(s) Address Phone Number
1. Kevin Lee Kenney PO Box 352, Toxine, TX 79087 BO6-PE7-T000
2
A
g1,
5.
B.

The road or portion ol e road we seck to close (shemes) (does not) provide access Lo
pablic fands, cither tederal or state.

We (have) st contaclod U Union County Road Superintendient and made him
aware of this request.

Dater Lf" X9~ Q‘%ff..

Potifoner /

Poditioner

Pefifiomer



Applivation for Bead Closure

Pagr 2

We the undersigned named above as the holders of a fogal, equitable or lessee interest in the
fands adjoining the above desenbed road for which closure is soupht bereby agree torvoad
clesure by the Union County Board of County Conunissioners. WEUNDERSTANIY THAT BY
AGREEING TO THIS CLOSURE, WE HEREBY ACKNOWIFDGETTHAT WE CONSENT TO
THE TERMINATION OF QUR ABILITY TO USE THIS ROAD AS A PUBLIC HIGHWAY AND
ANY PUBLIC MAINTENANCTE OF TTHS ROAD (OR ANY CLOSED PORTION STTATT
CEASESHOUTD TTTE COUNTY COMMISSION ACREL TO THT CLOSTURE.

Pegal Honalure

evn __\_‘(;ffé € s7ple s

fnt Wame ;o /
_4-29-2024 /[

Date












County Manager
Highlight


%@%Umon ouniy

RESOLUTION #2024-36
ACCEPTANCE OF THE FY 23 AUDIT

WHEREAS, the Union County is required by statute to contract with an independent auditor
to perform the required annual audit or agreed upon procedures for Fiscal Year 2023; and,

WHEREAS, the Board of Union County Commissioners has directed the accomplishment of
the audit for FY 23 be completed; and,

WHERFAS, this audit has been completed and presented to the Union County Board of
Commissioners per the April 9, 2024 Letter from the State Auditor authorizing the release of the FY 23
audit.

WHEREAS, NMAC 2.2.2.10 (M) (4) provides in pertinent part that “Once the audit report is
officially released to the agency by the state auditor (by a release letter) and the required waiting
period of five calendar days has passed, unless waived by the agency in writing, the audit report shall
be presented by the IPA, to a quorum of the governing authority of the agency at a meeting held in
accordance with the Open Meetings Act, if applicable;” and,

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Union County Board of Commissioners
does hereby accept and approve the completed audit report and findings as indicated within this
document.

ACCEPTED AND APPROVED this 14th day of May, 2024 in regular session by the Union
County Board of Commissioners, at Clayton, Union County, New Mexico.

ATTEST

SEAL Clayton Kiesling, Chair

Brenda Green, County Clerk

W. Carr Vincent, Member

Lloyd Miller, Member



§%Umon ouniy

RESOLUTION NUMBER 2024-37
A RESOLUTION APPROVING AND ADOPTING COUNTY POSITION CLASSIFICATION
AND SALARY PLAN UPDATE

WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners of Union County believes that all employes
of Union County should receive equitable and competitive compensation both direct, by salary, and
indirect, through benefits; and

WHEREAS, on April 12, 2022, Union County adopted an employee salary plan for the
purposes of recruiting and retaining qualified, competent employees; and

WHEREAS, the Union County Board of Commissioners understands the importance of
continually reviewing and updating the County’s salary plan to be externally competitive and
internally equitable; and

WHEREAS, Union County has engaged the services of S Resources, Incorporated to assist in
updating our previous salary plan; and

WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners of Union County has reviewed the proposed
update prepared and believes that it sets for the priorities and goals of the Board with regard to
recruiting and maintaining qualified competent County employees to serve the citizens of Union
County; and,

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED by the Board of County commissioners
of Union County that the updated Position Classification and Salary Comps as set forth herein are
hereby adopted and Management is to implement the changes for all Position Classes.

IT IS FURTHER RESOLVED that the Fiscal Year 2025 Position Classification and Salary
Plan Update shall have an effective date commencing July 1, 2024.

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 14® day of May, 2024.

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF UNION COUNTY, NEW MEXICO

ATTEST By:

SEAL

Brenda Green, County Clerk Chairman
Member

Member






Table of Contents

Section

Introduction

Position

Position

Purpose of Compensation Program
Characteristics of Effective Position Classification and Salary Plan
Methodology and Approach

Classification and Salary Plan Update

Classification

Outline of Position Classifications (Comp 1)

Index of Current to Recommended Position Classes (Comp 2)
Allocation of Individual Positions

Recommended Classification of Individual Positions (Comp 3)

Market Data Analysis

Market Data Sources

Market Comparator Pay Plans and Salary Schedules

New Mexico Eastern WIA Area — Wage Survey

Data to Current Levels

Salary Range Midpoint Comparison

Market Survey Data — Classified Positions

External Prevailing Midpoint Summary for Classified Positions (Table 1)
External Prevailing Midpoint Comparison - Classified Positions (Comp 4C)
Market Survey Data — Appointed Positions

External Prevailing Rates Summary for Appointed Positions (Table 2)
External Prevailing Midpoint Comparison - Appointed Positions (Comp 4A)

Salary Range Structure

Salary Range Adjustments
Union County Permanent Salary Range Structure

Salary Range Assignments

Position Classification Market Pricing

Position Classification Assignment to Salary Range

Salary Ranges per Position Class — Position Class Order (Comp 5)
Position Classes in Salary Grade Order (Comp 6)

Non-Benchmark to Benchmark Linkage (Comp 7)

Estimated Fiscal Impact of Recommended Salary Plan

Estimated Fiscal Impact of FY 2023 Salary Plan (Comp 8)
Estimated Fiscal Impact of FY 2023 Salary Plan by Department (Comp 9)

Salary Administration Guidelines and Options

Pay Levels below Salary Range Minimum
Pay Levels above Salary Range Maximum
In-Range Adjustments
Position In-Range Approach
Position In-Range Alternatives (Table 3)
Sequential Percentage Approach

S Resource, Incorporated

N

~NOoO b Ww

O O W o0 oo oo



Section
Hiring Rates
Promotional Increases
Part-time and Temporary Salary Levels

Position Classification Review and Salary Plan Update Recommendations
Recommendations

Salary Survey — Classified Positions
Salary Survey — Appointed Positions

S Resource, Incorporated

Page

24
24
25

26
26

Appendix A
Appendix B



Report and Recommendations




Introduction

Purpose of a Compensation Program

A Compensation Program is one of several primary programs or functions that serve as the basis of
effective human resource management. Compensation Programs are designed to provide equitable and
competitive employee compensation, both direct (salary plan) and indirect (employee benefits), intended
to attract and retain the organization’s workforce considering the needs of employees, the financial needs
and obligations of the organization and compliance with relevant laws and regulations.

Characteristics of an Effective Position Classification and Salary Plan

The success of any Position Classification and Salary Plan is judged by the degree to which it achieves
five basic goals:

e« INTERNALLY EQUITABLE: It provides salary ranges for all positions that fairly reflect the value of
each position relative to all others within the organization.

e EXTERNALLY COMPETITIVE: It provides salary ranges for all positions at a dollar level that is as
competitive as the organization feels it can afford to be while still at a level required to attract and
retain effective employees.

e PERSONALLY MOTIVATING: It is conceived as a vital management tool, playing a fundamental role
in motivating employees toward specific achievement of essential end results.

e EFFECTIVELY ADMINISTERED: It lends itself to adequate central guidance and control. It should be
structured in a way that facilitates specific budgeting of pay increases for any given year, forecasting
employee costs, sound analyses of actual compensation practices throughout the organization, and
accurate comparisons of the organization’s pay policy and practice to those of other, similar
organizations on a timely and ongoing basis.

e CONTINUING PROGRAM: It provides for the inclusion of new jobs as they are created and the
reassignment of jobs as changes in content and reporting relationships occurs to fulfill organizational
requirements for the future. It must be an orderly and integral part of the management process.

Methodology and Approach

An effective means to achieve internal equity or to reflect the value of each position classification relative
to all others within the organization is to place each position into the salary range structure based on the
position’s relative value in the labor market. This is achieved through the extraction and analysis of salary
data that best reflects the classifications that comprise the County’s workforce and within the comparable
labor market that reflects the nature of work and geographic areas from which employees are drawn for
Union County workforce. This salary data also serves as the basis to determine the organization’s
external competitiveness within its respective labor market.

S Resource, Incorporated 1



Position Classification and Salary Plan Update

In February 2024, Union County engaged the services of S Resource, Incorporated to provide an update
to the Position Classification and Salary Plan. The Union County Position Classification and Salary Plan
was initially developed in 2022 and salary range assignments were updated in 2023. S Resource,
Incorporated conducted a review of the County organizational structure and position classifications,
worked with County management to identify comparative employers, collected pay plans and surveys,
and conducted an analysis of the County’s position in the market. This report contains the findings and
recommendations formulated as the result of this project. In support of this effort S Resource,
Incorporated has:

1.

10.

1.

12.

Conferred with the County Manager to identify position classification and salary plan issues and
develop an understanding of the County’s salary administration history.

Maintained regular communications with the County Manager in support of project goals.

Reviewed Union County personnel policies and procedures and pay practices.

Reviewed County new and revised job descriptions provide a current basis for comparison to the
market comparator positions.

Reviewed organization structure and confirmed an understanding of organization work activities and
service delivery systems.

|dentified and reviewed position classification benchmarks common to its competitive market
including, as appropriate county and municipal governments, other governmental subdivisions in the
region, and other relevant employers.

Identified survey comparators, prepared requests for information, and conducted regular follow-up
and communications with survey participants.

Verified and collected data from a variety of sources, including established salary surveys and
organizational pay plans.

Extracted relevant salary data from comparative employers and those that compete with Union
County in recruiting and retaining high quality employees.

Conducted competitive pay practice analysis for County position classifications illustrating the
County’s position in relation to its labor market.

Reviewed pay practice analysis and survey findings with the County Manager.

Developed this report documenting study findings and recommendations related to the County
position classifications and compensation study.

S Resource, Incorporated 2



Position Classification

S Resource, Incorporated conducted a review of the County’s current organization structure and new and
revised job descriptions to update the position classification plan in order to draw valid job content
comparisons within the labor market.

Classifying positions involves the systematic arrangement of jobs into series and groups based on the
application of criteria such as similarity of duties, responsibility levels, occupational function, etc.

Relying primarily on the new and revised job descriptions and discussions with County management;
twenty-eight (28) distinct position classifications were identified including current positions and anticipated
future positions within the County structure. An outline of identified position classifications is contained in
Comp 1, Outline of Position Classifications.

The current County positions classifications were subject to a thorough review and recommended
classification updates are reflected in Comp 2, Index of Current to Recommended Position Classes.
A summary of this review is as follows:

Class Transaction % of Total
(N) No change 25 89.3%
(T) Title modification 1 3.6%
(J) New Classifications 2 71%

S Resource, Incorporated 3



Union County
Position Classification Plan
Comp 1 - Outline of Occupational Position Classes

g':‘;z Occupational Families and Position Classes FLSA
Administration
Executive Administration
102  Assistant County Manager E
105  Human Resources/Procurement Officer NE
106  Human Resources Assistant NE
Finance Support
111 Finance Specialist Senior NE
112 Finance Specialist NE
Elected Official Services Support
125  Deputy Clerk NE
Office Support - General
131  Administrative Assistant NE
133  Office Assistant NE
135  Records Specialist NE
Technical Support - Specialized
153  GIS Specialist NE
154  GIS Technician NE
Facilities & Infrastructure Maintenance
Facilities and Grounds Maintenance
166  Maintenance Worker NE
167  Custodian NE
Roads Maintenance
181  Roads Superintendent E
184  Crusher Operations Lead NE
185  Equipment Operator 3 NE
186  Equipment Operator 2 NE
187  Equipment Operator 1 NE
188  Road Maintenance Worker NE
Public Safe!
Safety & Emergency Management
201 Emergency Manager E
203  Fire Coordinator E
205  Emergency Services Coordinator E
DWI Program
211 DWI Coordinator NE
Law Enforcement Management
223  Sheriff Sergeant NE
Law Enforcement Operations
232 Deputy Sheriff - Senior NE
233 Deputy Sheriff - Certified NE
234  Deputy Sheriff - Cadet NE
Law Enforcement Support
241 Court Security/Prisoner Transport NE

S Resource, Incorporated




Union County
Position Classification Plan
Comp 2 - Index of Current to Recommended Position Classes

Transaction Codes:

M = Merge Into Other Class S = Split into Two or More Classes

T = Title Modification
D = Delete Class Title

N = No Change
J = New Job Class

Current Position Class

Recommended Position Class

Trans
Code

Assistant County Manager

Human Resources/Procurement Officer

Human Resources Assistant
Finance Specialist Senior
Finance Specialist
Administrative Assistant

Assistant County Manager

Human Resources/Procurement Officer

Human Resources Assistant
Finance Specialist Senior
Finance Specialist
Administrative Assistant

Office Assistant Office Assistant

Records Specialist Records Specialist

Deputy Clerk Deputy Clerk

GIS Specialist GIS Specialist

GIS Technician GIS Technician

Maintenance Worker Maintenance Worker

Custodian Custodian

Roads Superintendent Roads Superintendent

Equipment Operator Equipment Operator 3
Equipment Operator 2

Crusher Operations Lead

Road Maintenance Worker
Emergency Manager

Fire Coordinator

Emergency Services Coordinator
DWI Coordinator

Sheriff Sergeant

Deputy Sheriff - Senior

Deputy Sheriff - Certified

Deputy Sheriff - Cadet

Court Security/Prisoner Transport

S Resource, Incorporated

Equipment Operator 1

Crusher Operations Lead

Road Maintenance Worker
Emergency Manager

Fire Coordinator

Emergency Services Coordinator
DWI Coordinator

Sheriff Sergeant

Deputy Sheriff - Senior

Deputy Sheriff - Certified

Deputy Sheriff - Cadet

Court Security/Prisoner Transport

ZZ2Z2Z2Z2Z2Z2222- 14 Z2Z2Z2Z2ZZ2ZZ2Z2222Z2Z2Z



Allocation of Individual Positions

Individual classified positions were assigned to position classifications. The recommended placement of
individual employees/positions into the recommended survey position classifications are illustrated in
Comp 3, Recommended Classification of Individual Positions.

The allocation of twenty-one (21) individuals to the recommended position classifications identifies five (5)

position reclassifications, recommends modifications to nine (9) position titles, and no classification
change recommended for seven (7) individuals.

S Resource, Incorporated 6



Position Classification Plan

Union County

Comp 3 - Recommended Classification of Individual Positions

Transaction Codes:
R = Reclassification

N = No Change
T = Title Modification

Employee Name

Department

Current Position Class

Recommended Position Class

Trans

Code

GARCIA, CHERYL A
LAWRENCE, KRISTOPHER
GOODAN, LINDSEY
WALKER, BRAYDEN
GARCIA, ERICAD
REESER, JOE T
VALDEZ, JOSH
FARNUM, RACHEL
FRANKLIN, JOHN
JEFFREY, CURTIS K
JEFFREY, GAYLE B
NEWTON, JUSTIN
PADILLA, COLTON B
PHIPPS, MICHAEL SHANE
SENA, ALEXC
WOLFFARTH, RANDY
WRIGHT, GARY LEE
BOYER, JERRY
CRUZ, RONALD J
GRICE, JOHNR
MAYNES, ADRIANO P

Administration
Administration
Administration
Assessor's Office
Clerk's Office
DWI
Maintenance
Road Dept
Road Dept
Road Dept
Road Dept
Road Dept
Road Dept
Road Dept
Road Dept
Road Dept
Road Dept
Sheriff's Dept
Sheriff's Dept
Sheriff's Dept
Sheriff's Dept

S Resource, Incorporated

Human Resources/Procurement Officer Human Resources/Procurement Office
Emergency Services Coordinator

Emergency Service Coordinator
Finance Specialist - Payroll/AP
GIS Technician

Deputy Clerk

DWI Coordinator

Facilites and Ground Maintenance
Admin Asst

Equipment Operator

Equipment Operator

Equipment Operator

Equipment Operator

Equipment Operator

Equipment Operator

Equipment Operator

Equipment Operator

Road Superintendent

Certified Deputy

Certified Deputy

Certified Deputy

Certified Deputy

Finance Specialist

GIS Technician

Deputy Clerk

DW! Coordinator
Maintenance Worker
Administrative Assistant
Equipment Operator 2
Equipment Operator 3
Equipment Operator 3
Equipment Operator 2
Equipment Operator 2
Equipment Operator 3
Equipment Operator 3
Equipment Operator 1
Roads Superintendent
Deputy Sheriff - Certified
Deputy Sheriff - Certified
Deputy Sheriff - Certified
Deputy Sheriff - Certified

A4 44 ZA OV AADVAZAZZZAZZ




Market Data Analysis

Market Data Sources

The competitive pay analysis draws on two primary data sources to provide the foundation for this report
and accompanying recommendations relating to internal equity and external competitiveness. These
sources and a brief description are as follows:

Market Comparator Pay Plans and Salary Schedules

S Resource, Incorporated obtained pay plans, salary schedules and/or actual salary information from
governmental public sector organizations that comprise the market comparators that compete for
qualified personnel with Union County or are similar to the County (Class B Over) in terms of size, budget,
community population, etc.

The following comparators were included in this group:

Baca County, CO San Miguel County, NM
Colfax County, NM Sierra County, NM
Guadalupe County, NM Socorro County, NM
Mora County, NM Taos County, NM

Las Animas County, CO Town of Clayton

Quay County, NM State of New Mexico

Roosevelt Conty, NM

New Mexico Eastern WIA Area - Wage Survey, 2023, compiled and published by the New Mexico
Department of Workforce Solutions.

This survey reports data for a broad variety of job classifications and provides a breakdown of data based
on the state’s Eastern Workforce Investment Act (WIA) area. This area includes Chavez, Curry, De Baca,
Eddy, Guadalupe, Lea, Lincoln, Harding, Otero, Quay, Roosevelt, and Union Counties.

Data to Current Levels

Data from each survey comparator were “aged” to provide a current analysis of the County’s position in
relationship to reported pay levels. In order to provide a current analysis, data were “aged” by a factor of
two percent (2.5%) per year from the reporting date of the data through January 1, 2025.

Salary Range Midpoint Comparison

In conducting this analysis, a “structure-to-structure” method was utilized to compare the County’s salary
structure to the prevailing rates. The prevailing rates are represented by the comparator organization’s
Midpoints, which are the amounts employers pay for sustained competent job performance.

The Midpoint is the most objective, occupation-specific and consistent component of salary structures
among employers, as the varying widths of salary ranges are too great to utilize Minimum or Maximum.
Midpoint is not affected by actual salary averages which may reflect longevity, pay-for-performance, and
a myriad of subjective salary plan administration characteristics of the comparator employers.

In cases where a “structure-to-structure” was not available, actual average salaries were utilized as the
basis of comparison.

S Resource, Incorporated 8



Market Survey Data — Classified Positions

Survey position data were extracted from the market data sources based on a match of position content.
Union County positions were compared based on job duties and responsibilities as specified in the
County position description questionnaires. Survey positions identified with approximately 80% - 120% of
comparable position content were considered a match and the respective salary range data from each
available market data source was utilized for determining the Prevailing Market Midpoint. Of the twenty-
eight (28) position classifications identified in Comp 1; data were extracted for twenty-two (22) or 78.6%
of the position classifications where sufficient position content comparability was identified. Two (2) of
these positions are new to the County classification structure in the Road Department, including
Equipment Operator 3 and Equipment Operator 1.

The market survey data extracted and analyzed for this study is summarized in Comp 4C, External
Prevailing Midpoint Comparison — Classified Positions, and detailed in Appendix A - Salary Survey
— Classified Positions.

The External Prevailing Midpoint Comparison illustrates the relationship of Union County average rate of
pay for each survey position classification to the External Aged Midpoint. The study compares County
average rates of pay to survey midpoints. Normally this analysis utilizes a midpoint-to-midpoint
comparison and considers that position classifications within +/- 5% of the External Aged Midpoint are
competitive in the market. The breakdown of all County survey benchmarks is summarized as follows:

External Prevailing Midpoint Summary for Classified Positions — Table 1

Number of Survey

Percentage of Survey

Relationship to the Market Position Position
Classifications Classifications
>5% Above the External Aged Midpoint 0 00.0%
Within 5% of Aged Survey Midpoint 2 9.1%
>5% Below the External Aged Midpoint 18 81.8%
Vacant/New Position with no Midpoint 2 9.1%

S Resource, Incorporated




Union County

FY 2025 Salary Plan
Comp 4C - External Prevailing Rates Comparison - Classified Positions
Union Variance
Class Position Classification Title County T
Code Current Aged Survey $ %
Midpoint Midpoint °
203 Fire Coordinator $56,481 $71,048 -$14,568 -20.50%
223 Sheriff Sergeant $59,340 $70,311 -$10,971  -15.60%
163 GIS Specialist $46,356 $54,107 -$7,751 -14.33%
154 GIS Technician $37,119 $43,242 -$6,124 -14.16%
135 Records Specialist $36,213 $42,120 -$5,907 -14.02%
211 DWI Coordinator $47,515 $54,642 -$7,127  -13.04%
188 Road Maintenance Worker $32,808 $37,304 -$4,496 -12.05%
234 Deputy Sheriff - Cadet $40,972 $46,414 -$5,442  -11.72%
201 Emergency Manager $53,759 $60,832 -$7,073 -11.63%
233 Deputy Sheriff - Certified $48,703 $55,078 -$6,375 -11.57%
131 Administrative Assistant $35,330 $39,672 -$4,342  -10.94%
105 Human Resources/Procurement Officer $51,169 $56,566 -$5,397 -9.54%
166 Maintenance Worker $38,047 $41,659 -$3,613 -8.67%
125 Deputy Clerk $36,213 $39,619 -$3,406 -8.60%
111 Finance Specialist Senior $49,921 $54,009 -$4,088  -7.57%
133 Office Assistant $33,628 $35,725 -$2,097 -5.87%
181 Roads Superintendent $65,500 $69,424 -$3,924
Finance Specialist $40,972 -$2,271

Custodian
Equipment Operator 2

Equipment Operator 3
Equipment Operator 1

S Resource, Incerperated

$41,996

New
New

$48,463
$40,080

~$960

#VALUE!
#VALUE!

#VALUE!
#VALUE!

10



Market Survey Data — Appointed Positions

Within the Union County government there are six (6) positions appointed by Elected Officials. These
positions are appointed by the County Commission or a specific Elected Official and include: the County
Manager, Chief Deputy Assessor, Chief Deputy Clerk, Chief Deputy Treasurer, Undersheriff, and the
Sheriff's Executive Secretary. Appointed positions serve at the pleasure of their respective Elected
Officials and are often not included in the organization’s salary plan. For this analysis, actual salaries
were primarily used in developing comparisons to the market.

The market survey data extracted and analyzed for Appointed Positions is summarized in Comp 4A,
External Prevailing Rate Comparison — Appointed Positions, and detailed in Appendix B - Salary
Survey - Appointed Positions.

The analysis of the competitive position of Union County pay levels for Appointed Positions considered
those rates of pay that are within +/- 5% of the prevailing market rate to be competitive and within the
market. The breakdown of all County survey benchmark positions is summarized as follows:

External Prevailing Rate Summary for Appointed Positions — Table 2

Number of Survey Percentage of Survey
Relationship to the Market Position Position
Classifications Classifications
>5% Above the External Aged Midpoint 0 0.0%
Within 5% of Aged Survey Midpoint 2 28.6%
>5% Below the External Aged Midpoint 4 57.1%
Vacant Position with no Average 1 14.3%

S Resource, Incorporated 11



Union County
FY 2023 Salary Plan
Comp 4A - External Prevailing Rates Comparison - Appointed Positions

Union Variance
01/01/25
Class P . County
Code Position Classification Title Average | Aged Survey ; o
Rate Midpoint °
222 Executive Secretary to the Sheriff $45,948 $51,092 -$5,144  -10.07%
121 Chief Deputy Assessor $56,901 $62,664 -$5,763  -9.20%
101 County Manager $100,700 $107,012 -$6,312  -5.90%

Chief Deputy Cler

$ 1 1 t]
123 Chief Deputy Treasurer $55,442 $58,134 -$2,692

221 Undersheriff Vacant |  $77,289

S Resource, Incorporated 12



Salary Range Structure

S Resource, Incorporated proposes Union County adopt the Permanent Salary Range Structure, shown
on the following page. This structure is characterized by a 50% spread from the Minimum to the
Maximum; and Salary Ranges are separated by a uniform 2.5%, facilitating the precise assignment of
position classes to ranges closest to the Prevailing Market Midpoint. It is recommended the County utilize
this single consolidated salary structure, designed for effective administration and to facilitate regular
maintenance of the salary system.

Salary Range Adjustments

Position classes should be individually reassigned to different salary ranges on a regular basis to reflect
the movement in the Prevailing Market Midpoint (if any) for each position class. The Permanent Salary
Range Structure should not be adjusted by blanket percentages or flat dollar amounts, as that will
adversely impact the County’s external competitiveness and the internal equity of the salary plan.

The recommended base salary range structure is shown in the Permanent Salary Range Structure.

S Resource, Incorporated 13






[Salary Range Assignments

Position Classification Market Pricing

The review of the County’s organizational structure identified twenty-eight (28) position classifications.
County position classifications provided the basis for extracting the available market data represented in
the survey sources previously identified. Of the twenty-eight (28) position classifications identified within
the County; market data were identified, extracted and analyzed for twenty-two (22) or 78.6% of the
survey position classifications.

Position Classification Assignment to Salary Range

As reported, twenty-two (22) or 78.6% of the County position classifications were determined to have a
direct market value based on the analysis mentioned above. These position classifications were then
placed into the recommended salary range with the Midpoint that most closely matched the position
classification’s Prevailing Market Midpoint.

A complete listing of recommended salary range assignments is shown in Comp 5, Salary Ranges per
Position Class (Position Class Order) and in salary range order in Comp 6, Salary Ranges per
Position class (Salary Range Order).

The remaining position classifications were slotted into the salary range structure based on professional
judgment and the current value comparability in relation to position classifications for which data were
available. The relationship of non-benchmark to benchmark position classifications is detailed in Comp
7, Non-Benchmark to Benchmark Linkage.

S Resource, Incorporated 15



Union County
FY 2025 Salary Plan
Comp 5 - Salary Ranges Per Position Class - (Position Class Order)

Class Current -- Recommended --
(o] ational Families and Position Classes | Sala
Code ccupatio v Salary Minimum | Midpoint | Maximum
Range Range
100%
Administration
Executive Administration
102 Assistant County Manager 52 55 $67,077 $83,846 $100,615
105 * Human Resources/Procurement Officer 35 39 $45,184 $56,481 $67,777
106 Human Resources Assistant 23 28 $34,437 $43,046 $51,656
Finance Support
111 * Finance Specialist Senior 34 37 $43,007 $53,759 $64,511
112 * Finance Specialist 26 28 $34,437 $43,046 $51,656
Elected Official Services Support
125 * Deputy Clerk 21 25 $31,978 $39,973 $47,967
Office Support - General
131 * Administrative Assistant 20 25 $31,978 $39,973 $47,967
133 * Office Assistant 18 20 $28,264 $35,330 $42,396
135 * Records Specialist 21 27 $33,597 $41,996 $50,396
Technical Support - Specialized
153 * GIS Specialist 31 37 $43,007 $53,759 $64,511
154 * GIS Technician 22 28 $34,437 $43,046 $51,656
Facilities & Infrastructure Maintenance
Facilities and Grounds Maintenance
166 * Maintenance Worker 23 27 $33,597 $41,996 $50,396
167 * Custodian 17 19 $27,575 $34,468 $41,362
Roads Maintenance
181 * Roads Superintendent 45 47 $55,053 $68,816 $82,579
184 Crusher Operations Lead 33 34 $39,936 $49,921 $59,905
185 * Equipment Operator 3 New 34 $39,936 $49,921 $59,905
186 * Equipment Operator 2 27 29 $35,298 $44,123 $52,947
187 * Equipment Operator 1 New 26 $32,778 $40,972 $49,167
188 * Road Maintenance Worker 15 17 $26,246 $32,808 $39,369
Public Safety
Safety & Emergency Management
201 * Emergency Manager 37 42 $48,659 $60,823 $72,988
203 * Fire Coordinator 39 44 $51,122 $63,903 $76,683
205 Emergency Services Coordinator 42 47 $55,053 $68,816 $82,579
DWI Program
211 * DWI Coordinator 32 38 $44,082 $55,103 $66,124
Law Enforcement Management
223 * Sheriff Sergeant 41 47 $55,053 $68,816 $82,579
Law Enforcement Operations
232 Deputy Sheriff - Senior 36 41 $47,472 $59,340 $71,208
233 * Deputy Sheriff - Certified 33 38 $44,082 $55,103 $66,124
234 * Deputy Sheriff - Cadet 26 31 $37,085 $46,356
Law Enforcement Support
241 Court Security/Prisoner Transport 23 28 $34,437 $43,046 $51,656
*Salary Survey Benchmark
S Resource, Incorporated 16



Union County

FY 2025 Salary Plan

Comp 6 - Position Classes in Salary Range Order

Occupational Families and Position - Recommended ~-
Class Code Salary
Classes Minimum | Midpoint | Maximum
Range
102 Assistant County Manager 55 $67,077 $83,846 $100,615
54 $65,441 $81,801 $98,161
53 $63,844 $79,806 $95,767
52 $62,287 $77,859 $93,431
51 $60,768 $75,960 $91,152
50 $59,286 $74,107 $88,929
49 $57,840 $72,300 $86,760
48 $56,429 $70,537 $84,644
181 Roads Superintendent 47 $55,053 $68,816 $82,579
205 Emergency Services Coordinator 47 $55,053 $68,816 $82,579
223 Sheriff Sergeant 47 $55,053 $68,816 $82,579
46 $53,710 $67,138 $80,565
45 $52,400 $65,500 $78,600
203 Fire Coordinator 44 $51,122 $63,903 $76,683
43 $49,875 $62,344 $74,813
201 Emergency Manager 42 $48,659 $60,823 $72,988
232 Deputy Sheriff - Senior 41 $47,472 $59,340 $71,208
40 $46,314 $57,893 $69,471
105 Human Resources/Procurement Officer 39 $45,184 $56,481 $67,777
211 DWI Coordinator 38 $44,082 $55,103 $66,124
233 Deputy Sheriff - Certified 38 $44,082 $55,103 $66,124
111 Finance Specialist Senior 37 $43,007 $53,759 $64,511
153 GIS Specialist 37 $43,007 $53,759 $64,511
36 $41,958 $52,448 $62,937
35 $40,935 $51,169 $61,402
184 Crusher Operations Lead 34 $39,936 $49,921 $59,905
185 Equipment Operator 3 34 $39,936 $49,921 $59,905
33 $38,962 $48,703 $58,444
234 Deputy Sheriff - Cadet 31 $37,085 $46,356 $55,627
30 $36,180 $45,226 $54,271
186 Equipment Operator 2 29 $35,298 $44,123 $52,947

S Resource, Incorporated

17



Union County

FY 2025 Salary Plan

Comp 6 - Position Classes in Salary Range Order

Occupational Families and Position - Recommended -
Class Code Salary
Classes Minimum | Midpoint | Maximum
Range
106 Human Resources Assistant 28 $34,437 $43,046 $51,656
112 Finance Specialist 28 $34,437 $43,046 $51,656
154 GIS Technician 28 $34,437 $43,046 $51,656
241 Court Security/Prisoner Transport 28 $34,437 $43,046 $51,656
135 Records Specialist 27 $33,597 $41,996 $50,396
166 Maintenance Worker 27 $33,597 $41,996 $50,396
187 Equipment Operator 1 26 $32,778 $40,972 $49,167
131 Administrative Assistant 25 $31,978 $39,973 $47,967
125 Deputy Clerk 25 $31,978 $39,973 $47,967
24 $31,198 $38,998 $46,797
23 $30,437 $38,047 $45,656
22 $29,695 $37,119 $44,543
21 $28,971 $36,213 $43,456
133 Office Assistant 20 $28,264 $35,330 $42,396
167 Custodian 19 $27,575 $34,468 $41,362
18 $26,902 $33,628 $40,353
188 Road Maintenance Worker 17 $26,246 $32,808 $39,369
16 $25,606 $32,007 $38,409
15 $24,981 $31,227 $37,472
14 $24,372 $30,465 $36,558
13 $23,778 $29,722 $35,666

S Resource, Incorporated

18



Union County
FY 2025 Salary Plan
Comp 7 - Non-Benchmark to Benchmark Linkage Table
This table is to be utilized as a guide during annual salary plan updates, permitting non-

benchmark job classes to be adjusted by the same number of salary ranges as the salary survey
benchmark job class to which they have been linked.

Non-Benchmark Position Class | | Benchmark Position Class
Assistant County Manager County Manager
Human Resources Assistant Administrative Assistant
Crusher Operations Lead Equipment Operator 2
Deputy Sheriff - Senior Deputy Sheriff - Certified
Court Security/Prisoner Transport Deputy Sheriff - Cadet
Emergency Services Coordinator Emergency Manager

S Resource, Incorporated

19



rEstimated Fiscal Impact of Recommended Salary Plan

The analysis provided is based on assignment of positions to salary ranges closest to the Prevailing
Market Rate.

Comp 8, Estimated Fiscal Impact of FY 2025 Salary Plan summarizes the estimated fiscal impact for
the total salary plan. In developing this estimate, any part-time positions hourly rates were annualized on
a full-time basis, this approach would tend to overstate the estimated costs. Using this basis, if the
County maintains a prevailing rate policy at 100% of the market, it will cost an estimated $117 or 0.01 % of
direct payroll to bring 1 employee (4.76%) of the total employees) to the Minimum of their assigned salary
range. It should be noted this calculation is based on direct pay and does not include additional
costs related but not limited to employee benefits including PERA, FICA, Medicare, and
unemployment.

Comp 9, Estimated Fiscal Impact of FY 2025 Salary Plan by Department summarizes the estimated
fiscal impact for the total salary plan by department/division.

S Resource, Incorporated 20









Salary Administration Guidelines and Options

The initial implementation of the County’s salary plan will be controlled by the County’s financial
resources, and therefore balanced between the County’s desire to pay all employees at the market rates
for the occupations and the available funds. It is also recognized that pay adjustments for County
employees within the collective bargaining unit are subject to negotiations between the County and the
employee representatives.

Plan implementation involves three basic considerations; the first is the adjustments to the salary range
minimum for any employee with a pay level below the minimum, second the treatment of employees
whose current pay is above the salary range maximum, and finally an adjustment for employees in the
salary range to move their pay level closer to the midpoint or market rate for of their assigned salary
range.

Pay Levels below the Salary Range Minimum

We recommend that the pay levels of all employees whose current pay is below the minimum of the
salary range for their position classification be increased to the minimum of their assigned salary range on
the effective date of the pay plan.

Pay Levels above the Salary Range Maximum

We normally recommend that the pay levels of employees who are above the maximum of their assigned
salary range be frozen. The pay levels of these individuals exceed the market rate for their position
classification by greater than twenty percent (20%). As part of a continuing program, when the County
makes regular adjustments to the pay plan, these salaries will fall back into the appropriate salary range
over time.

Despite the premium paid to employees above the maximum of their assigned salary range, some
employers choose to provide additional compensation on an annual basis. In these cases, we
recommend providing the employee with an amount equivalent to the average pay increase for the
County (such as 2%) in a lump sum paid at the end of each quarter within the fiscal year. The amount
does not accrue to the employee’s base rate of pay but must be included in the rate of pay for calculating
overtime payments.

In-Range Pay Adjustments

Position In-Range Approach

In-range pay adjustments are an important step in utilizing the new salary ranges. By adjusting current
employees in their assigned salary ranges, the County will recognize prior service, lessen the potential
impact of pay compression, and open the bottom of the pay ranges for newly hired personnel.

While there are several approaches for in-range adjustments, we generally recommend an initial step to
“‘manage to market’ as a means of increasing pay levels closer to the market rate for position
classifications within the County’s structure. Managing to the market involves the granting of variable
percentage pay increases based on an employee’s position in relation to the market rate for their position
classification. The relationship to the market rate is expressed as an individual's “compa-ratio”; calculated

by dividing their current rate of pay by the midpoint or market rate for their position classification.

The table that follows illustrates three possible variations and funding levels for managing to market. The
exact formula and approach implemented should be based on the County’s available financial resources
and budget.

S Resource, Incorporated 23



Position In-Range Alternatives — Table 3

Salary Range Compa - Ratio Alternative Funding Levels
Quartile Option 1 Option 2 Option 3
First 80.0% - 89.9% 5% 4% 3%
Second 90.0% - 99.9% 4% 3% 2%
Third 100.0% - 109.9% 3% 2% 0%
Fourth 110.0% - 120.0% 2% 0% 0%

This approach moves the pay levels of employees furthest from the market rate at a faster pace than
those nearer to or above the market rate for their respective positions, while providing some level of in-
range adjustment for most employees.

Sequential Percentage Approach

Under this approach sequential 1% increases are provided according to each incumbent’s compa-ratio
until available funds are expended.

All eligible employees whose compa-ratio is 80% are provided a 1% increase, then
All eligible employees whose compa-ratio is 81% are provided a 1% increase, then
All eligible employees whose compa-ratio is 82% are provided a 1% increase, then
All eligible employees whose compa-ratio is 83% are provided a 1% increase, then
All eligible employees whose compa-ratio is 84% are provided a 1% increase, then

S

Where there are funding limitations, this approach tends to provide in-range increases only to those
incumbents whose pay levels are furthest below the market rate for their position classification.

Hiring Rates

We recommend the County adopt a flexible approach to determining hiring rates of pay. The minimum of
the salary range is an extension of the midpoint of market rate; a generally applied to candidates for
employment that are minimally qualified. The County should use the entire salary range for hiring
purposes, generally limiting starting rates of pay between the salary range minimum and the salary range
midpoint. This should provide sufficient flexibility to compete for highly qualified individuals and when
desired skills are scarce within the labor market.

Effective administration of this flexible approach requires significant management controls to provide for
equitable administration. The County should adopt a set of guidelines to be administered on a consistent
basis that define specific criteria for determining hiring rates above the minimum of the pay range. In
addition, the County should not hire new personnel at rates of pay in excess of current employees within
the same position classification. While circumstances may necessitate the practice on rare occasions,
this practice must be applied on a limited basis and subject to approval at the highest administrative
levels.

Promotional Increases

A promotion occurs when an employee moves to a position classification with a higher salary grade than
his/her current salary grade. Salary grades within the recommended fixed range structure increase
progressively at 2.5% increments. We recommend that promotional increases range from increasing an
employee’s pay to the minimum of the new salary grade to a maximum pay increase equivalent to 2.5%
per salary grade above their current assigned salary grade.

As with determining appropriate hiring rates of pay, the County should adopt a set of guidelines to be
administered on a consistent basis that define specific criteria for determining promotional rates of pay
above the minimum of the salary range.

S Resource, Incorporated 24



Part-time and Temporary Employee Salary Levels

Since salary levels are based on the value of the work performed in the labor market, part-time and
temporary employees should be paid within the same salary range as full-time employees in the same
position classification. Normally, temporary employees can be paid at the minimum of the salary range
for the position classification; however, this may vary in cases where the employee has specialized
knowledge and skills.

S Resource, Incorporated 25



Position Classification and Salary Plan Update Recommendations

Recommendations:
Approve Recommended Position Classification Assignments

Adopt the recommended position classification assignments for the purpose of salary administration as
recommended and illustrated in Comp 3 — Recommended Classification of Individual Positions.

Adopt the Prevailing Rate Pay Midpoint Policy

Adopting the Prevailing Market Rate Midpoint (100%) provides the basis for the County’s competitive
position in the market and provides central guidance to County management for ongoing pay
administration.

Salaries to the Minimum of the Salary Range

Increase the rate of pay of the employee whose current rate of pay is below the minimum of their
assigned salary range to the minimum of the range.

Salaries above the Maximum of the Salary Range

There are no employees whose current rate of pay is above the maximum of their assigned salary range.
The County should maintain a policy not to pay employees above the maximum of the salary range and
freeze the pay level of employees above the maximum of their assigned salary range.

In-Range Pay Adjustments

Adopt a method of in-range adjustments that distributes available salary increase funds on a variable
basis with the goal to “manage to market” as a means of increasing pay levels closer to the market rate
for position classifications within the County’s structure.

Grant Funded Positions

Grant funded positions’ salaries are normally administered within the limits of the grant funding and not
necessarily based upon the market rate established within this report.

Hiring Rates

Maintain a flexible approach to determining hiring rates of pay. The minimum of the salary range is
applied to candidates for employment that are minimally qualified. The County should use the entire
salary range for hiring purposes, generally limiting starting rates of pay between the salary range
minimum and the salary range midpoint. Hiring rates between the minimum and midpoint of the salary
range must be approved by the County Manager; hiring rates above the midpoint of the salary range must
be approved by the County Commission.

Maintain a Continuing Program
Maintain an ongoing and continuing program for the County by conducting regular reviews (approximately

every 3 - 4 years depending on labor market conditions) to determine position in the labor market and
provide for maintenance of the program.

S Resource, Incorporated 26



Appendix




Appendix A: Salary Survey — Classified Positions




Y4V

pajeiodioou] ‘@0inossy S

995'95$ :ajey JvjIey BujjreAssd
VIN 09D Alunog sewuy se yojew oN
YIN Ajunog adnjepens yojew oN
Y/N Aunog Aenp yojew oN
VIN Ajunog xejjoD {ojew oN
VIN 092 Ajunog eoeg yojew oN
201'8¥% UO}AE[D JO UMO | 3iojD Ainde@/seolnosey uellny
¥80°LG$ VM UIS)SET - SAM 02IX8|\ MN s}sije10adg sa0IN0Say UelWnH
108°15% Auno) ouo%0g 180IJ0 S80INOSSY UBWNH
L08°LSS Aunog jenbI ues lojeljsiuiwpy yH
£€0.'65% Aunoo jjanasooy 10jeUIpIo0D $82IN0SeY UBwWNH
2LL'GS$ Aune) elop 10JeUIpIooD HH
/9£19% Auno) euais I0}BUIPIOOD) S321N0Say UBWNYH
0.6'29% OOIX3|N M8N JO 3}elS 11 1slesausD HH
Z61'0.% Aunoy soe | Josinadng s901n0say uewny
ﬁ %Ys 6" _ 16€'G%- 99G'95% i 691'16$ 19210 JUSWAIN0014/S80IN0SaY :mE:E
% $
ajey Jaie ajey abesaay

BIUBLIEA

Buljleaald y202

funog uolun

uoneziuebio juedionied

ssejo uonisod Aaaing

SSEJD Uol}Isod Ajunod uojuf)

2z Jo | obed

Raning Auejeg
AQuno9g uolun




20¢ pajelodioou] ‘e2inosey S

600'75$ :ajey 3aven Burjieasald
VN 09 Aunoy sewjuy se’ yojew oN
N Auno) eus|s yojew oN
V/N UoiAE[D JO UMO L yojew oN
V/N Aunog Aenp yolew oN
V/N Aunoo eloy yojew oN
VN 09 funo eoeg Yojew oN
681'9v$ OOIXB|\| MON JO SJElS v 9|0 Bunipny @ Bupunoooy ‘Buidsaspjoog
626'0v$ Auno) |enbiy ues loluag jsijeroadg aoueul
016'05% VIM Wajsed - S4M 00Xl MaN x3 810 Bunpny ® Bununoooy ‘Buideaxpioog
108°'19% Ajuno) 0110208 10jeuploo) [oihed
ZLl'ess Aunoo xejo) M8l jjoJhked
225'85% Auno9 yanasooy Jsieroadg aoueulq
£10'09% AunoQ adnjepens - uepIuyo8] |joiAed
G66'c9% Auno) soe | [eiousD) JUBUNCODY
| w%s5.- | ss0y$- [ B00WSS | ize'evs soluag jsijeoads soueurs|
% s ajey JoxJen ajey abeiaay
asueLIEA Bujieaald $z0z | Aunod uoun uogezjuebiQ juedionied sse|D uogisod Asmng sse|D UORISOd Aunos uojuf
Aaning Aiejeg

2z 10 g abed funos uolun




¥20¢ pojelodioou] ‘92Inosey S

eve'er$ :ajey JoNey Guljreaald

VIN Auno? janasooy yojew oN

VIN 092 Auno eoeg Yojewl oN
¥/9'/€$ Aunon eusis Jsieioads Bununoooy
8.2'8¢$ Ajuno) oiloo0g 18|10 @oueuld
06¥'8¢$ 09 Auno) sewjuy seq uesSISsy aAljelsiuiwpy/Bununoooy
L9v'ov$ Aunog [enBiN ueg Jslieloads soueuld
8LY' LS uoyhe|D Jo umo | jsieioadg soueul
026'2v$ VIM Wd)se3 - SIM 0X3N MoN syie|0 Buipny g Bununcooy ‘Buidsaxioog
00E'v¥s$ OIS\ MON JO 2lelS 0 810 Bunipny g Bununoooy ‘Buidsaxioog
S68'vr$ Aunog fenp 330 Jloihed
6EL'SPS Auno) xejjon 81D dv
6.£'Gt$ Aunog adnjepens ssulel] ueloluyos] jjosAed
GOv'9vs Auno) eiopy ajqehed sjunNodoy/|[olAed
Gge6v'ess Aunog soe] I] ueroluyoa] Bununosoy

[ wses- | iees | eveers | zie'ovs 1sifeioads eoueur]
% s ajey Joje ajey abeloay 6 d
EELIT:IN:TY Buijieaald vzoz | Auno uowun uoneziuebiQ yuedionied sse|9 uonisod Aaang sse[) uoiisod Ajunon uojun
Asming Aiejeg

2z jo £ obed fjunos uolufn



¥20¢ pejelodiodu} ‘aoinosay S
619'6E$ :ajey Jotelyl BuijleAald
VIN 09 Auno) sewijuy SeT yojew oN
V/IN uojAe|D JO UMO | yojew oN
ZLL'PES Auno) euals JUE]SISSY 3210
z58'veS 09 AunoD eoeg o0 Aindeg
Lie'les VIM ulaises - SJAN 0OIXoN MoN u3 sxyie|D esueol g [edioluniy ‘HNoD
£zs'/es Auno) jjeAasooy isijeoads saoiaeg Aluno)
1€9'28% AunoD 0110008 | 91D Aindeg
9.1'8e$ Kuno) xejjoD el Aindaq
198'e€$ Auno) Aend Joinseal] “YIo|D ‘Jossessy Aindeq
£00°6€$ Auno) [enbiyy uesg jsijeioadg seoinies Ajuno)
8£6'2¥3$ Auno) eiopy Jainsesl] ‘9| Jossessy Aindeg
00€'P¥$ ODIX3N MON JO S1BIS O elD 8suadi] % [eddjunyy ‘HNOD
2.2'sv$ fjunoo soel | Isljeioeds juswssessy Jainseal) “yeld findeg
6.E'G¥$ funoo adnjepens a0 Auno) Aindsg
| woos- | oores- sLo'6ES | E£LT'9E$ w10 Andaq]
- : SIEH JHEN ojex] abelany uogezjuebiQ juedionie SSE[D UORISOd AaAIn ssejg uonisod fjunog uo|
QoUBLIEA Buijreaald vzoz | Aunog uoun nez| 1oied [D uonisod S se[9 uonisod Ajunon uojuf

e jo ¥ abed

Aaning Auejeg
Auno9g uolun




¥20¢d

pejelodioou] ‘@dInosay S

¢.9'6E$ :ajey Jovie Buiieasid :
Y/N 09D AJunog sewiuy se yojew oN
Y/N Auno) adnjepens yojew oN
VIN 09 Aunog eoeg yojew oN
7E5'vES Auno) xeyj0d JUBSISSY SAEJSIUIWLPY
191'se$ uoie|Q Jo umoL jue}sissy SAlelSiUILPY
088'Ge$ funog eusig Jojuag juejsissy 200
058‘8€$ Aunoo elopy Aeyaioes
£ev'6eS VIM WSaJSES - SAM OOXSN MaN SJUBjSISSY SAIJRlSIUILPY B SOLEIaI09S
807'0v$ Ayunog jerssooy juBjSISSY SAljelsiuILPY
GR9'0V3$ AjunoQ 0110208 JUB}SISSY 9AjjRIISIUIPY
128'Lv$ Aunog [enbiy ues JUBJS|SSY SAlEsSIUIWPY
628'Lv$ Ayuno9 soe JUESISSY SABBJSIUILPY
9/8°2v$ Aunog Aenp JUBISISSY SANELSIUIWPY
00E't¥3$ O2IXS|N MSN JO SjelS O eAnoax3 % [eoipaly ‘|eba jdeoxe ‘Alejeioeg
j\%m.ov _ Zre'rs- _ T.9'6E$ i ose'ses juessissy m>_§ﬁ_c_5u<_
% $ ajey JaJey o)ey abelany 6 d
souewE Buiieasid 202 | Aunoo uomn uoneziuebiQ juedionied sse|9) uonisod Aaning ssej) uonisod Ayuno) uoiun

22 J0 g abed

Aaning Aiejeg
Auno9 uolun




14404 pajesodioou] ‘©2inossy S
Gzl'ses :ajey 194y Buljieasid
V/IN Auno) adnjepens yojew oN
VIN Aunon Aenp yojew oN
VIN Aunod xeyjod yojew oN
ezlh'ies 09 Aunog eseq [eaus|0
ovL'Les VIM ulsises - SJM 00X\ moN X3 [elaueg - IS0 YO
clo'les UOIAED JO UMO L Juelsissy 820
(AR 22 Runog eusig uejsissy ado
PES'VES Aunog esop 81D AN
py8'reS Anog jenssooy juelsissy 8040
88s'/e$ Ajuno) 0110203 1sijeioads aalelsiuiWpY
¥81'8€$ Ajunog jenbiy ues juessissy 20O
£G/'8¢€$ funog soe | jsjuondesay 29O
£8lL'ovs 00 Ajuno) sewiuy se7 3810 AN findag
SrS'ovs OOIXa(N MON JO SjElS O [Blaua - 8|0 YO
[ wues | se0zs- | szr'ses | seo'ees Juejsissy 2ow0|
o
. : 91ed Jox.elN ajey obesaAy uoneziuebiQ juedionted ssejo uonisod Asaing ssej) uoiisod AjunoH uolun
soueLEA Buijieasid $z0z | Auno) uoiun '

72 J0 9 abed

Aaaing Aiejeg
Ayuno9g uolufn




¥20¢

pajeiodioou] ‘©0iN0say S

ozL'zv$ :ayey Jayiely Buijrersid
VIN 09 Aunod sewiuy seT yojew oN
VIN Aunod adnjepeng yojew oN
V/N Aunog [enbiy ues yojew oN
VIN Auno) }oresooy yojew oN
V/N Aunog Aenp yojew oN
v/IN Ajunog elop yojew oN
VIN 00 Aunog egeg yojew oN
ev0'ves UojAB|D JO UMO | Jsieloadg spiooay
VLL'vES Aunog xejjod Jsieoads spiooay
915'8e$ Ajuno) o11020g MiojD Jeus) uonusleq
£19'ev$ Aunod eusis Jsijeloads uonewlou|
00€'v¥$ OOIX8|N M3N O dielS O i3]0 Spioday] @ uohewioju]
€0L'9v$ VIM Wwaiseq - SJM 00IXS|N MON SHIB|D SPJ0OSY g Uoheulioju]
g6r'ess Aunog soe | S8[D spiodsy
| weovl- | zos'sg- | ozvews 1 eigioss Isifeoeds spiooay]
o
’ : AEY JOEN 232y abeiaAy uoneziuebiQ juedidnted SSB[D uonisod Aaaing SSB[D uonisod Ajuno) uojun
aouelEA Buijieasad $zoz | A3unoo uolun

e jo L abed

Aaning Aiejeg
Ayunoo uolun




¥e0c

pejelodioou] ‘90IN0say S

L0L'PS$ :ajey }oIejy Buljieaald
VIN 0D Ajunog seuwliuy Sen yojew oN
VIN UOME[D JO UMD L yojew oN
V/N Aunod eiopy yolew oN
VIN Auno) xejjod yojew oN
VIN 09 Aunog eoeg yojew oN
/90'av$ OOIX3N MON JO SjelS 0 sisuswwelbojoyd % sieydelboued
0S5/'67% Ajuno) 010008 Jabeuepy wa)sAs SO
1805 Ajunog eusis Jojeupiood Buluueld g Buissalppy/SIO
191°25% funoy sdnjepens isifepeds Sio
6/'25% VIM ulajseq - S ODIXS|\ MaN suepojuyoa] Buiddey g Buifening
8L0'eG$ Ajunog janssooy isijeads S19
960°€5$ Auno) [enbi ues 1sifeoads sI9
265'€9% Auno) Aenp Jaddep
G66'c9$ Aunog soe L i1sfjeuy SIO
_\o\omm.ﬁ- _ 162'2%- _ 101'7G$ ] ose'ors 1sijeads w_o_
o
- : SiEd JYIEN ajey abesony uoneziuebiQ juedionied sse|) uonisod Asaing ssej9 uonisod Ayuno) uoiun
souBLEA Buljieasid yzoz | Auno) uoun

Kaning Aiejeg

Zz j0 g 9bed fjunog uolun




¥c0¢

pajelodioou] ‘8aInosay S

[4745¢ :ajey 3avtely BuljleAaid
V/IN 09 fjuno) sewiuy seT yojyew oN
V/IN Auno) euais yojew oN
VIN Aunoo adnjepens yojew oN
VIN uoyfe|D Jo umoL yojeul oN
VIN Auno) eiopy yojew oN
VIN Aunog xejjoD yojew oN
VIN 09 funo) eoeg yojew oN
269'9e$ funog Aend uepluyss] SIo
825°'/€$ VIM UWId)seT - S4AN 021XaN MaN ug sueioiuyoa ) Buiddepy g Buikenung
Zr9'ors Auno9 ouoo0g Jeddey S19
yev'ers Aunog [enbiwy ues uepiuyoa] sio
gLL'Gr$ Aunod jenesooy UeRiuyoa] Sio
68L‘9v% 00IX3|y MSN JO 9)81S g sisuswwelboyoyd % sieydelboped
G6Y'ess Aunog soe | uepluyoal s1o
_ %9} Y- _ yel'9%- ere'ers m 6LL'2e$ uBIoIuYa w_mu_
% $ ajey Jo)yJely ajey abeiaAy

S0UBLIBA

Buijieaald 20z

funo) uorun

uoneziuebio juedionpied

sse|) uonisod Asaing

sse|) uolisod Ajunon uoiufn

22 40 6 9bed

Kaning Auejeg
Aunos uolun




¥20¢

pajelodioou] ‘@oInossy S

659°'L¥$ :ajey Joel BuljleAsld
VIN Auno9 010208 yolew oN
669'2€$ Auno) eiop souBUSIUEN
ge1'GES Ajunog xeyo0 souBUBUIBIA
199'9e$ uolhe|) Jo UMo] 19)IOAN SOUBUSIUIBH [BISUSD
€25'2€$ Aunog jjsrssooy IOMIOAN SOUBUSIUIEI
y19'.€$ Auno) eusig ueIoIUYo8 | SoUBUSIUIBIN SSlioBL
9/9'.€$ 09 Aluno) eoeg 10SIAI8dNG SoUBUSIUIBY
869'0v$ Auno9g |enbiy ues UBIOIUYDS | SoUBUSJUIBN
¥66'0%$ Aunog Aenp souBUSUIBI
8.€'G¥$ Awuno) adnjepens) 18O\ SouBUSUIBYY SBijioeS
190'8v$ 02IXa[ MSN JO 81els v J93IOAN Jieday 3 souBuUSUIBIY
682'8v$ 09 Aunod sewjuy seq ueoluyoa | SouBUBIUBK
¥Z1'6¥$ Auno9 soe| UBIDIUYDS | SOUBUSIUIEN
069°15$ VIM UBIseT - SJAMN 0OXe|N MaN X3 SISNIOAA Jieday % aouBUSIUBIY
_‘nka.w- _ £19'e$- _ 659'1¥$ i Ly0'8es I9YIOM mocmcwE_mS__
% s ajey JoqJeN ajey abriany
aoueLEA Buiiersad ¥20z | Aunop uojun uogezjuebio juedionied sse|D uopisod Asaing ssejo uonisod Aunod uotun

gz 0 01 obed

Aaning Aiejeg
funog uolun




¥eoc

paleiodioou] ‘©2Inosay S

080've$ o)y Jodie N Buljresald
Y/IN Ajuno) eusig yojew oN
VIN uojfe|D Jo umo | yojew oN
v/IN Aunog soe] yojew oN
v/IN Aunogd Aenp yojew oN
VIN Aunog xejjoD yojew oN
£9g'72% 09 Aluno) sewiuy seT UBIpO}SND/UBIDIUYDS | SoUBUSIUIBIN
166'82% 09 AQjuno) eoeg aafojdwg soueusjuB
g6Z'LES funod elop uelpoisnd
080'vE$ Aunog adniepens uelpoisnd
Lev'res VYIM UIS}SET - SJM O0IXS| MSN X3 sisues|d B siojuer
yLL'GeS AunoQ yenssooy ueiposng
167'9€$ Auno) o000 uelpoisnd
y8y'8e$ Ajunog jenbiy ues uelpoisng
oov'ees O2IX3N MON JO 8jelS Y sisues|D @ siojuer
| wsoe- | esz'ig- | oso'ves | s08'zES ueipojsno|
. : ey JoyIE eyey obelary b. diot sse|D uon! Aamn SSB|D UoBISod AJunogy uoiu
soueen Bulliersid pz0z | Aunod uowun uoyeziuebiQ juedopied 10 uopisod s 10 uonisod 2 uojun

Zz o || ebed

Aanung Aiejeg
fjuno9g uoiun




¥eoe

pajelodioou] ‘90In0say S

a4 :ojey Javuely Buijreaasd
v/IN 09 Aunogd sewiuy se’ yojew oN
VIN UOIAED JO UMOL uojew oN
V/IN Aunoo soe | yojew oN
V/IN 09 Aunog eoeg yojew oN
656'€S$ funog etop Jojensiuiwpy S1SEA PllOS/speoy
£/0'09% Aunoo |1enbiy ues Josinledng speoy
9z£'c9% Aunog xey|00 Juspusjuedng speoy
6ty 9% Auno) Aenp juspusjuiedng speoy
1G9°/9% Aunog eusis 10158410 SISEM PIIOS B PEOY
/G0'69% VIM UIS)sET - SAM OdIXay MON uofonysuo) ‘siosinedng
TTLLLS OOIXaN MeN JO SJelS || 1oBeUe Bul]
/871'9/% AJUnog JjeAssooy juspuajuladng speoy
v/€'6/$ Auno) adnepens juspuajuadng peoy
¥£8'v8s Auno) ouoo0s 1010011 PEOY
[ wsos- [ vee'es |  reviees | oos'ses Juspuejusdns specy|
o
- : 5 9y JoAIEN eyey abelsny uoneziuebiQ juedionied sse|) uonisod Aaaing sse|) uopisod Ajuno) uoiun
aouBLEA uijreasld $z0Z | Aunod uolun :

Zz Jo 7). obed

Aanung Aiejeg
Auno9 uolun




244

pajeiodioou] ‘90In0say S

€ov'8r$ :a)ey JdIell Buljieasld
VIN Aunog eusig yojew oN
VIN Aunoo adnjepens yojeuw oN
VIN UoMe| Jo umo | yojew oN
v/IN Ajunoo eiopy yojew oN
VIN Aunod xe}jo0 yojew oN
VIN 09 AunoY eoeg yojew oN
V/IN Aunoo Aenp yojew oN
959'cv$ VIM ul)seT - SJM O0dIXe| MON X3 siexIopn @oueuauiely AemybiH
y69°'cy$ Aunod jenbiy ues Joluag Jojesado juswdinbg
969°'ey$ Auno) o100 11l JojesadQ juawdinbg
€09y Ajuno9 jenesooy 111 JojeladQ juawdinbg
Pr6'6Y$ 02IXa|\| M3N JO 3jBIS v JoxJopn @oueuauiely AemybiH
0ge'sss 09 Ajuno) sewluy se’ 111 JojesedO
aL¥'e5$ Auno) soe] || JojesedQ souUBUSUIBI PEOY
{ianwas | anvae | eov'ers meN £ Jojesado juswidinb3|
% s ajey JdeN a)ey abesany d
sousion BuiieAssd +20z | Aunoo uoun uopeziueBiQ juedonied sse[D uonisod Aaaing SSe|) uonisod Ayuno) uojun
. Aeming Aiejeg

Zz o ¢} obed

Ajunoo uoiun




¥c0c pajelodioou] ‘92IN0SSY S
166'2v$ :opey J9dJe BuljieAald
VIN uojke|) jo umo | yojew oN
vv.'8e$ Kunod elop JlojesadQ SISEA PIOS/PEOY
L12'6€$ VIM ula)ses - SIM O2IXSN MaN sIaMIOA) SoueuauieN AemybiH
865'6€$ fjuno) eluLIS (AnesH) JojesadQ juswdinbg
869'0v$ Awunon [enbipy ues J0jeledQ juswdinbg
G89'0v$ fjunon xejjon JojeladQ juswdinbg
PGPS 09 Auno) eoceg aafojdwg abpug % peoy
108°L¥$ AjunoD 0110208 11 JojeradQ juswdinbg
foler a2 Auno) }anasooy |1 JojesadQ juswdinbg
188°'tv$ Aunod Aenp lojelsadQ ape|g
Lee'rvs 090 funo seuuy se Il Jojerado
6.€'sv$ Aunog adnjepens Jojesado uswdinbg
190'8¥$ 0DIXS|\| MaN JO SlBlS O ioxiopp @oueuauey AemybiH
S67'€SS Auno) soe| | JojeladQ eoueuSjUBN PEOY
| wvez | ooes- | ssezvs | 9e6Lys Z lojesadQ swdinba]
% s ajey JoNJe|l ajey abelaay
aouBLIEA Buijreaald $zoz | Aunog uolun uoneziuebiQ juedionled sse|g uopisod Aeaing ssejp uonisod Ajuno) uoiun

Aaning Aiejeg
Zz 10 v} sbed Ayuno9 uolufn




A4 pajelodiodu] ‘e2inossy S

080°0¥$ :ejey JvJeN Buljieaald
V/N 09 Aunog sewiuy se yojew oN
V/IN Auno) eusis yojew oN
VIN funog adnjepens) yoyew oN
V/N uoMie|D Jo umo| yojew oN
VIN Aunoy soe] yojew oN
VIN Aunog |anbipy ues yojew oN
VIN Auno9 eioy yojew oN
V/N Aunog xeyo yojew oN
V/IN 09 Aunog eseq yojew oN
£€6°'cE$ VI UISISET - SJM O0IXS MaN ug sIeMIoA soueusjuely AemybiH
¥85'6€$ Aunog Aenp JOALQ YoniL
98¢2'0v$ Ajuno9 ouooog | JojeiadQ uswdinbg
80¥'07$ Aunog yarssooy | Joresadp juswdinbg
68L'9v$ 02IX3|\ MSN JO S1BIS g 18MIopn aoueusiuie|y AemybiH
[Manwa# | anvag | osooys | meN | 1ojeiedo yuewdinb3]
% s ajey 19xIeN ajey abeIaAY neziuebig juedio; sse| uonisod AsAIn sse|9 uonisod AJuno uol
aouBLEA Buijreaald $zoz | Aunog uolun uonezi O juedpiped 1D uonisod S 1D uonisod o uoiup
Aaaing Aiejeg

Zz 4o G| ebed Auno9o uoiun




¥c0oc pelelodioou] ‘@21nosay S

y0e‘LES :ajey Jayiely Buijreasld
YIN Auno) eusig yolew oN
Y/IN Auno) adnjepens) yojew oN
VIN Auno) soe) yojew oN
VIN AUnoD Joreso0y yojew oN
VY/N Auno) Aenp yojew oN
VIN Auno? elopy yojew oN
VIN Auno9 xeyjed yoyew oN
VIN 00 Aunog eceg uojew oN
£0t'zes Uo}AB[D Jo UMO J10qe]
G/G'9e$ VIM UlaiseT - SJM ODIXa| MaN slaloge] uojjonisuo)
62e'.€$ Aunod ouoo0g | Josoge]
¥87'8c$ Aunoo jenbip ueg 19MI0\) SoUBUSUIBY [BJOUSD
99t'6€$ ODIXa MaN Jo 81elS O JelogeT uolonIsuoD
/95'6€% 09 Auno seuwliuy seT JalogeT [elsusD
_ %G0°CL- _ 96v'v$- _ OWASS i 808'zes I9MION\ SoUBUSIUBI nmom_
% s ey Joviel )y abeloAy
QJUBLIBA Buijieaasd yzoz | Auno) uolun uoneziuebiQ juediogied sse|) uonisod Asaing sse|) uolisod Ajunod uoiufn
KaAing Auejeg

Zz Jo 91 obed ; Ayunos uolufn



y20c

pejelodioou] ‘8oinosay §

Te8'09% a3y JoopieN BuijieAald
VIN VIM uls)ses - SJM 00IXSIN MON ojew oN
VIN 09 Aunog sewjuy se ojew oN
VIN UolAB|D JO UMOL yojew oN
V/IN Aunod fenp yojew oN
Y/IN Auno) eiop yojew oN
610°/¥$ 02 Auno) eoeg 1abeuepy Aousbiowg
08¥'05% fAuno) xejjon Jojeulp1oo?) Juswsabeueyy Aousbiawg
2£2'66% Aunog ouoo0g J0}BUIPI00 ) Juswabeuely Aousbiawg
299'GG$ Auno) eusis Jojensiuiwpy saoineg Aousbiawg
960°/5$ Auno9 JeAesooy 1ebeueyy Aousbiawg/isuue]d
£10'09% Aunog adnjepens 10}euiploo?) juswsabeuepy Aousbilawg
G/G'19% Aunog jenbiy ues 1ebeuepy Aousbiswg
168'29% 09IX8|\| MaN JO 8jB1S s)sijeroads juswebeuepy Aousbiswg
855'/6$ Aunoo soe | uswebeueyy Aousbiawg A1) - 10108110
{ weory- | ec0us | zegoss | esi'ess Jebeue Aousbieuid]
% s ajey JexJely ajey abelaAy
souBLEA Bujieasid $20z | Aunog uojun uogeziuebiQ juedidiled sse[D uopisod AsAIng sse|9 uonisod Auno) uolun

2z Jo /| obed

Aanung Aiejes
fjuno9g uolun




¥20¢ pajelodioou] ‘82Inosey §

8v0°LLS :ajey 11y Buijreasid

vIN 09 AunoD sewiuy se yojew oN

VIN Auno9 eusis yojew oN

Y/N Aunoo adnjepeng yojew oN

VIN 0JIXaN MSN 40 8ielS yojew oN

v/IN Auno9 jjaresooy yolew oN

VIN Awnog Aenp yolew oN

V/IN Auno) eiop yojew oN

VIN 09 Aunog eoeg Yojew oN

14847 Aunog xeyj0d Ileysie|y all4

/$8'25% AunoD 010208 |[BYsIEN 2414

£69'79% Auno9 [enbiy ues JoIyo 8l

199'69% UOIAE[D JO UMOL eIyo 8l

12.'28% VIM UIOISET - S OOXBN MBN  SISYIOAA UouaAald @ Bunybyaild jo siosiaadng

AR AARR; Aunog soe Je1yD aul4 Aunod

[ wosoz- | sos'wis- | 8r0728 | leyloss Jojeuipi000 aui
% $ ajey Joxie|N a)ey abelaAy 5 d A
soueon Builiensid pzoz | Auno uon uoneziuebiQ juedionied sse| uolisod AaAIng sse[ uonisod fJunon uolun
Aamnung Aiejeg

2z jo 81 obed fyunog uoiun




i

144

pajelodioou] ‘80Inosay S

Zr9'rss :ajey Jaxely Buljreasid
V/N 09 Aunod sewiuy seT yojew oN
VIN Ajuno)d ouooog yojew oN
VIN UOJAEID JO UMOL Lyojew oN
VIN 092 Aunod eoeg yoyew oN
g Aunod Aenp Jojeuipood iMmd
£6.L'5¥$ Aunod eusls Jopaud [Mmd
G69'97$ Aunod xeyo0 JojeulpIood Mad
v8.'6v$ VIM UIS)SeT - S 00Xy MON sisi[eoads uojjeonp3 uyesH
v18'6v$ Aunod elop lojeuipiood IMA
gzL'19% Auno? jjerssooy Jojeulpiood Imd
086'c5$ 00[XB|N MaN JO SjelS 0O J0jeanp3 yjesH
£10'09% fyunog adniepeng lojeuipiood IMd
€/0'09% Auno9 |anbiy ueg J030811q weiboid |MA
160°28% Ajunoo soe] 10jeulploo)) weiboid IMA
[Twvoel- [ zzius- | evoves | sis'us Jojeuipi0od Imal
0
. ° SJEN JBHEN ajey obelary uopeziuebiQ juedidnied sse|o uonisod Aaaing sSSB[D UORISOd AJunog uoiun
soueLEA Buijreasid 2oz | Auno) uown i ’

2z J0 6| obed

Aaaing Aiejeg
Ajunoo uolun




¥20¢

palesodioou] ‘921nosay S

LLE'0/$ :ajey Joiel Buljieraid

VIN VIM ulsiseq] - SJM OOXSN MaN ydew oN

VIN Aunog Aenp yojew oN

Y/IN Aunog elo yojew oN

V/N 09 Auno) eoeg yojew oN
Zsv'ess Aunod o11000g juesbiog
19¢'19% funog euais jueablag yuays
£69'79% uojfe[D Jo umo | Juesbleg o01j0d
€69'79$ Aunog jenBIy ues jueablag Jusys
G18'v9$ Aunog xejjod uesbleg
£12'99% Aunog }jaAasooy jueablag pusys
£00'693% funoo adnjepens jueablag
998'G/$ Aunog soe| juesblog
82.'78% Q0 Aunog sewiuy seT juesbleg josed
112'001$ OOIXa M3N JO 3jels jueablog

j\ooo.m [ _ 1260L$- _ LLe'oLs i ove'65$ juesblag t:mr_w_
% s ajey JoyJey ajey abelaay B
aouBMEA BujjreAsad +zoz | Aunon uorun uopeziuebiQ juediogied sse|Q uonisod Aeang ssejo uonisod Aunoo uolun

ZZ 10 0z obed

Asaing Aiejeg
funog uolun




¥ec0c

pajelodioou] ‘90In0sey S

8.0'65$ :ajey Joxaely Buljreraid

990'G¥$ 09 Aunog eoeg Huays Aindsq
GzZE'SYS Aunog eion Huays Aindsq
06Z'LV$ fQunoo Aenp 19010 Aindag
G/9'6%% Aunog owoosog 1t ueys Aindsq
/8v'06% Auno) eusis Andeq yusys
108'L5$ Aunog |enbin ues pauia0 yisys Andeq
STANALS 090 Aunog seuwiuy se Aindeq joszed
¥e'vSs Auno9 yarssooy gueys Aindeq
£2P'v5% uojfe|o Jo umoL payiaD 1820 3llod
22.'95% Auno) xejjoD paunaD yusys Aindeq
106'85$ VIM useises - S 0oIXalN maN $12010 [oJEd SHUBYUS B 82lj0d
€10'09% funog adnjepend paueD Aindeq yiieys
110°29¢ Kunog soe | Hueys Andaq
20€'LL8 OOX8|N MaN JO DjeIS J2OIYO Josed

_ %LG b1~ _ G/€'9%- 810'G5% i cos'srs payIHaD - JlIBYs a,amn:
% $ ajey jaieN ajey abelany 6 d !
soueLe BunieAsid ¥Z0z | Aunog uowun uopeziuebiQ juedidiued sse|) uollisod Asaung SSE[D UOlISOd Ajuno) uojun

2z o 1z obed

Aamung Aiejeg
Ayunog uolun




¥20¢

pajesodioou] ‘©2unN0sey S

viv'ors :ajey joxdeN Bulresaid
Y/IN 09 Aunod sewliuy seT yojew oN
VIN Ajunoo eusis yojew oN
VIN Aunon Aenp yojew oN
VIN 00 Auno eoeg yojew oN
PeS'veES Ayunog etop Huays findaq
8zy'6e% Aunog [enbiy ues 1eped gusys Aindeg
880°2¥$ funo) ouodog (1epeD) | guaus Aindeg
£5v'zrs Aunog jeresooy 1epeD ylayg Aindeg
G15'2vs uojfe|d Jo umo L payiusoun 4820 8vli0d
656'cr$ VIM UI)SeT - SJM O0DXaN MaN U3 s18010 [osjed SHUBYS § 33ljod
19125% Aunog adnjepens payieoun AindsQ Jusys
LPE'PSS Auno xejjod paiiueoun Jueys Aindsq
111'95% OOIXBN MON JO 3JBIS ynioey
125'95% Aunog soe | jepe) pusys Aindeg
Vwesv- | eov'ss | vivovs 1 ee'ors 19peD - Juaus Aindeal
% s ajey JoqJeN oJey obeiaay 6 d
soueLEn Buiersid $20Z | Aunoo uowun uopezjuebip juedioiued sse|9 uonisod Aoaing sse|9 uonisod Ajunog uojun

2z J0 2z ebed

Asning Aiejeg
fAjunoo uoiun




Appendix B: Salary Survey — Appointed Positions




¥20¢ pajeiodiodu] ‘92In0sey S

2i0'201$ :eyey Joxtely Buijrerald

VN VI ulsises - SHM O2IX3Nl MSN yojew oN

VIN OOIX3N M3N 3O 3jBlS yojew oN
62¥'89% 09 Aunoy eoeg J0JENSIUILPY AUnoD
Geg'll$ Auno) elop 1abeuepy Aunod
10'c8% fQunon Aend 1abeuep Ajunod
vL0'e8$ Auno) adnjepeng 1eBeuepy Ajunoo
816'88$ 09 Aunog sewiuy se lojessiuiwpy Ajunod
296°'16% Aunog xejjoD JaBeuep Ajunod
€6G'ELLS fQuUnoy }aAesooy Jabeuepy Aunod
prL'YLLS Auno) jenbiy ueg Jabeuey AJunod
2eL'0eLs Aunoy soe| JebBeue Ajunod
GLL'0ELS Auno) eusig Jebeuepy Ajuno)
66L'EVL$ uojAe|D Jo umo| J1abeuel UMO]
v16'291$ Auno) ouooog JabBeuepy Ajunod

[ %oss- | zic'os- | zozoig | oozoois sabevep Aunoo|
% $
aoueLEp mwﬂw___w“_oﬂmn__z Mwmwoﬂmmww_“ﬂ uopezjuebiQ Juedidiied sse[ uoyisod Aaaing sse|o uopisod Auno) uojun

suonisod pajuioddy - AeAing Atejeg
g Jo | abed bc_\_oo uoiun




1244 paielodioou] ‘e2Inossy S
799'29% :ajey Jayiely Buijleaald
VIN VIM uls}ses - S4M 021Xy MSN yojew oN
VIN ODIXS|\ MON jO SielS yojew oN
VIN UOIABID JO UMOL yojew oN
98/'¥$ Auno) eiop Jossassy AindeQ jeiyd
£0G'¥5$ Auno) Aend J0ssassy Aindag JeiyD
279'95$ Ajuno) ouilooog 10ssassy Aindaq Jeiyd
221'86% 0D fAjuno) sewluy se’ J0ssassy Ajnda( Jeiyd
£10'09% Ayunop adnjepens Jossassy Aindaq jauD
0LL'e9% Auno) eusig lossassy Ainda( Jeiyd
£62°29% Auno) jjsAssooy Jossassy Ainda( Jeiyd
82.'0.% Auno) xe}jod Jossassy Ajnde( Joiud
82.'0.$ 09 Aunog eoeg yojew oN
8z2.'0/% Aunog jenbiy ueg Jossassy Aindaq jBIyD
959'v.$ Auno) soe| Jossassy Ainda( Jeiyd
| w%oce | eos'ss | vo9'zos | L0s'9ss Jossessy Aindag jamo]
%

oduellep

g jo g ebed

suonisod pajuioddy - AsAing Alejeg

funo9g uolun




|44

pejeodioou] ‘@2Inosay S

12£'85% :ajey Jjsel Bulieasd
VIN VIM We)Sed - S\ 09IXo MaN yojew oN
VIN 0oIX8|\ MBN 4O SJelS yojew oN
VIN uoMe[D JO UMOL yojew oN
VIN 09 funoD eoeg yojew oN
8/9'vv$ Ayuno9 eson 3s|D Andaq Jalyo
0/£'05%$ Aunog ouoos0g 9|0 Aindaq Joyo
€L2'e$ Auno) [anbiy ues o0 Andaq JayD
€05 'vS$ Aunod Aenp [0 Aindsq Jalyo
l2y'ls$ 09 AunoD sewiuy se iejo Aindeq o0
G19'95% Auno) jjeresooy »el0 Aindeq jo1y0
£10°09% funog adnjepeng o0 Aindad Joiyo
£95'09% Auno eusig o) Aindeq Jaiud
82.'0/% Aunog xejjod sel0 Aunog Aindag
959'v/$ Aunog soeL >80 Aindeq oD
| wset- | geees- ize'ess 1 zrb'ses [0 Aindeq ool
% ¥ a)ey J9jJe|N ajey abesaay 6 d It
soueLEn BulieAdid f3unog uomun uopneziuebiQ juediojied sse|) uonisod A9AIng sse|g uonisod Ayuno) uolun

g jo ¢ abed

suonisod pajuloddy - AeAing Aiejeg

Ajuno9 uolun




20¢ pajelodiosu] ‘92Inosey S

¥€1'85$ 191y JodiIe A Bullieaald
VIN VIM Uldises - SJM 03X MON yojew oN
VIN O2IXS|\ MBN JO SjElS yojew oN
VIN UoE(D Jo UMOL yojew oN
VIN 092 Aunoy eoeq yojew oN
191'ev$ Auno) eiop Jelnseal] Aindeq jeIyd
0/£'05% Aunoy 0110008 Jainsesl] Aindeq jelyd
€L2'es$ Aunog [enbin ueg Jainseai] Ande( jeIuD
£05'7S$ Awnog Aenp Jainseal] AndeQ Jjeiyd
G10'26% 09 AQjuno) sewiuy se Jainseal] Ands( jJoIuD
G19'95$ AUnoY }jeresooy Jainseal] Ainde( JoIyd
£10'09% Auno) adnjepens Jeinseal)] Ainde( jeiyo
€95'09$ Auno) eusls Jeinseal] Ainde( Jolyd
82L0L$ Aunod xej09 Jainseal] Ande(q oIy
959'vL$ Auno) soe| Iamseal] Ainds( oIy
| weov | eeo'zs |  weisss 1 zvvisss Jainseal] Aindeq oo}
9
® i mwmm IAEN ajey abelany uopezjuebiQ juedioied SSBe|D uonisod Asaing sse|g uolisod Ajuno) uojun
soueLEA uljieAald funog uoiun

suonisod pejuioddy - Aeaing Aiejeg
9o v abed fAunoo uoiun




20¢ poleiodioou] ‘92Inosey S

682'LL% :ejey el Buljreasld
VIN VIM UiS)SET - SHM OOIX8\ MSN yojew oN
YIN Aunod eielg yojew oN
v/IN Aunon adnjepens yojew oN
VIN uoje[D jo umoL yojew oN
/N Auno) eiop yojew oN
VIN 09 Aunog eoeq yojew oN
666°95$ Aunod Aenp Husysiapun
8£2'65% Auno9 o110008 Huaysiapun
Lee'29% Auno) jerssooy Huays Aindaq Jauo
yeL'els Aunog [enbip ues Hi1aysispun OS
yeL'el$ Auno) xejjod Husysispun
GlL1'6.$ 09 Aunod sewuy SeT Huaysiepun
628°'LL% Aunog soe L Husysispun
gee'vels 02IXS|N| MON 4O SjelS uieyded
[anvas | Envae | esgizss | jueoen uuayssspun]
% § ajey 1l ajey abelaay
uogeziuebiQ juedidiied Sse|) uojjisod AdAing sse|9 uolisod Ajunog uoiun
soueeA Buijieaald Aunog uolufn

suoijisod pejuioddy - AeAing Alejeg
9 jo g abed fjunosH uoiun




144

pejesodioou] ‘@0Inosay S

Z60°L5$ :ojey Jdle BuljleAald
VIN uojie|D Jo umo yojew oN
Y/IN fAuno) Aenp yojew oN
V/N 09 Auno) eoeg yojew oN
0£6'6€$ Aunod elo juejsissy sAjessiuiupY
110'v¥$ 0D Ajuno) sewluy se’ Aiejaloag uswpedaq Juays
G60'vv$ Auno) eusis HJUays 8y} 0} Aiejesoag aajnoaxg
8EL'YYS Auno9 xey0o Huays sy} 0} Aleja10es aAlNoex3
6.e'st$ Aunos adnjepens) Huayg ay) o} AlejaIoag aAlnNoaxg
6'6v$ 02IXa\ MAN JO 9)BIS Vv SOLBJaI09S SAIINJaX]
089°05% Ajuno) jenesooy yuays auj 0} AIejoIoss aAinNosxy
96°'65$ Ajuno) ouoo0s Jusyg ay} 0} Alejaloas aAlnosxy
8pe‘/6% Auno9 [enbiy ues laBeuep 9010 OS
2€6'79% VIM Ula)se] - SN 00IXSAl MON S81IE}2109S BAIIN2aX]
1¥5'69$ Auno9 soe | yuayg ayy o} Aiejaioag aAnoexgy
jo\ﬁo.or- _ y¥1'se- 260°15% i 8v6'sy$ Husys ay} 0} Alejeinas m>::o®xm__
% $ ajey Joje|N ajey abelaAy
aoueLEA Buijieaald funog uolun uopezjuebiQ juedionied sse| uonisod Aaning sse[D uonisod fHunog uoiun

g jo g abed

suoljisod pajuioddy - AaAing Alejeg

fAunog uolun



UNION COUNTY
Resolution No. 2024-37

Authorization of Special Revenue Grant Fund (604) (DFA # 29000) budget increase

WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners of Union County meeting in regular session on May 14,
2024 did propose to make budget adjustments; and

WHEREAS, the County of Union does, through Budget Resolution 2024-37 ask that authorization
for the budgetary adjustments be granted, as summarized in the attachment; and

WHEREAS, the County of Union wishes to increase revenue and expenditures by sixty thousand
dollars ($60,000.00) in Fund 604 for a grant between the Union County Clerk and the Secretary of
State. ‘

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED the Board of Commissioners of Union County does
hereby approve the aforementioned budget adjustments and respectfully requests the
authorization for the budgetary adjustments and revisions be granted by the Local Government
Division of the Department of Finance and Administration of the State of New Mexico.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, we have hereunto set our hands and official seal this 14t day of May
2024.

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS - UNION COUNTY

Clayton Kiesling, Chairman
ATTEST:

W. Carr Vincent, Member

Brenda Green, County Clerk

Lloyd Miller, Member






UNION COUNTY
Resolution No. 2024-38

Authorization of General Fund (401) (DFA # 11000) transfer and Jail-Detention Fund (424) (DFA #
22600) transfer and budget increase

WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners of Union County meeting in regular session on February
8, 2024 did propose to make budget adjustments; and

WHEREAS, the County of Union does, through Budget Resolution 2024-38 ask that authorization
for the budgetary adjustments be granted, as summarized in the attachment; and

WHEREAS, the County of Union wishes to increase the transfer from the General Fund to the Jail
_ Detention fund by thirty-five thousand dollars ($35,000.00). The Board of County Commissioners
would also like to increase expenditures in the Jail - Detention Fund (424) by thirty-five thousand
dollars ($35,000) for expenditures related to jail contracts.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED the Board of Commissioners of Union County does
hereby approve the aforementioned budget adjustments and respectfully requests the
authorization for the budgetary adjustments and revisions be granted by the Local Government
Division of the Department of Finance and Administration of the State of New Mexico.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, we have hereunto set our hands and official seal this 14 day of May
2024.

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS - UNION COUNTY

Clayton Kiesling, Chairman
ATTEST:

W. Carr Vincent, Member

Brenda Green, County Clerk

Lloyd Miller, Member






§%Umon Couniy

RESOLUTION #2024-39

A RESOLUTION AMENDING SECTION 10.4 ANNUAL LEAVE WITH PAY AND
SECTION 10.5 SICK LEAVE WITH PAY OF THE PERSONNEL POLICY MANUAL,
RESOLUTION #2021-18 PERSONNEL POLICY MANUAL ADOPTED NOVEMBER 10,
2020.

WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners of Union County desires to
implement a system of personnel management to encourage a quality work environment that
will promote quality service to the people of Union County; and

WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners adopted the Personnel Policy
Manual on November 10, 2020 with Resolution #2021-18; and

WHEREAS, Section 10.4 of the Personnel Policy Manual sets forth the County’s policy
for Annual Leave with Pay; and

WHEREAS, Section 10.5 of the Personnel Policy Manual sets forth the County’s policy
for Sick Leave with Pay; and

WHEREAS, the County has reevaluated this section and determined the following
changes be made to Section 10.4 Annual Leave with Pay and Section 10.5 Sick Leave with Pay.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT, based on the foregoing Recitals, the
Board of County Commissioners of Union County resolves that:

Amendment 1: Section 10.4 of the Personnel Policy Manual shall be amended to read:

10.4 ANNUAL LEAVE WITH PAY. Full-time, non-appointed County employees
accrue leave according to the following schedule:

Amendment 2: Section 10.5 of the Personnel Policy Manual shall be amended to read:

10.5 SICK LEAVE WITH PAY. Leave with pay is granted to a non-appointed
employees when a medical reason, such as described in §10.6 below keeps the employee from
performing the duties of the position.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that all current appointed positions, which include the County
Manager, Chief Deputy Assessor, Chief Deputy Clerk, Chief Deputy Treasurer, Undersheriff, and
Executive Secretary to the Sheriff:

1) Shall be paid for any accrued annual leave time as of the date of this Resolution.
2) Shall no longer accrue Annual Leave Time with Pay or Sick Leave Time with Pay.
3) Shall be allowed to use Paid Time Off with the approval of their Elected Official.



Passed, adopted, and effective this 14th day of May 2024, by the Board of County
Commissioners of Union County.

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF UNION COUNTY

Chairman

Member

ATTEST Member

County Clerk



l]lll0ll (:0lllll

PROCLAMATION
MAY IS MOTORCYCLE AWARENESS MONTH

WHEREAS, motorcycles are used as a regular means of transportation for commuting, touring
and recreation in and around Union County, New Mexico; and

WHEREAS, the Union County scenic roadways make motorcycling a very popular destination
for riders from around the country; and

WHEREAS, the safe operation of a motorcycle requires the use of acquired skills developed
through a combination of training and experience, the use of good judgement, and thorough
knowledge of traffic laws and licensing requirements; and

WHEREAS, it is imperative that the residents of Union County be aware, show consideration
and share the road with motorcycles on the streets and highways and recognize the importance of
motorcycle safety; and

WHEREAS, the National Highway Traffic Safety Administration (NHTSA) has declared May as
“Motorcycle Awareness Month”; it is the desire of the Union County Board of Commission to
join the NHTSA in raising awareness of the growing number of motorcyclists on Union
County’s roadways in order to help prevent accidents and most importantly, save lives.

NOW, THEREFORE, on behalf of the County Commission of Union County, I do hereby
proclaim the Month of May 2024 to be:

MOTORCYCLE AWARENESS MONTH in Union County, and urge our citizens to be
observant, courteous and knowledgeable about motorcycle usage in our community.

Passed, adopted and approved, this 14t day of May, 2024 at the regularly scheduled meeting of
the Union County Board of Commissioners.

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS- UNION COUNTY

Clayton Kiesling, Chair

Brenda Green, County Clerk

W. Carr Vincent, Member

Lloyd Miller, Member



9L 9

¥Z0Ce0TI0¥

A1ddNS 60SETTHANI

INOdd s 20T

A1ddNs AdTAYdE

67 TT

0T T

S6°LSY

§9°1C

8€ 9%
€T°69
€T 69
6€720¢
06°6C
TS ve
STTLY
667 9TT

09 ¥LTIE

00°8%5¢C
00°00LL

SZ0CE0T0¥
L00C80TO¥
9L0T89STY
9L0T8BISTY
SZ0Ce0T0¥
GZ02¢0T0¥
SZO0TLSTITY
SC0CTIPLOY

9L02T¥LOY
9L0TTPLOD

996T# NOLLNG DINYd

$8TS# NOILVYLSENS JATYHHS
$8TG# NOIILVISENS J4I¥EHS

6STCH# HASYHT JHAMOL
6STZ# ONILSOH TIVWH

6STZ# ONINOLINOW WIVIV HITA

LOS#H# Q4 HTIIANIED
ZZI# Q4 NITNdYD

SYAGWIN MHEN ¢ Hdd ANYIATIM
SUEGWAN MAN ¢ 3dd TIId FINLONULS

ST%88 WN NOLAYID
INO¥d 'S 20T

A1ddns AdTAVYE

ST¥88 WN NOILAVTID
INO¥d ~S TOT

A1ddNs AdTAVEE

aQyod NAFYD %S

HOIAYAS OLNV S.dWdd

0%LL8 WN NOLVY
LZ X0d "0°d

OTT SLLANNHE

8T¥88 WN SINIOW SEA
L9 X0d "O°d

“0D ENOHAHTHL AHTIVA ¥OVE

EN aa1d HLIAE S¥vS
AIYIIIONIS LIODS

DTT ‘ODIXHWN MAN FAYD ¥IV

T0T88 WN SIAOTID
anld SdddHOS TZZ

ONI ODIXHW MAN A0 OIdHITI VWY

arvd

SI0L 9L°9
60S€TT

Tvd 6% TT
aiva

$10L 6% TT
FOSETT

T9d 01" T
arvd

$10L O0T'T
4 akA s

TYd  S6°LSY

arvd

$I10L S6°LS¥
T050%20T
Idd  S9°T¢
arvda

SI0L §9°T¢C
9¢0¢€CTO-¥<

TYd 88°S¢tl

arvd
$I10L 88°SEL
$Z0ZTO0S

TYd 09 ¥LIE
arvd

SILOL 09 °¥LIE
T-96S8

T¥d 00 8%20T
arvd

$I10L 00°8%20T

$ZLTEOADT

26 LEOT

T9°0TLOT

¥6°¢9¢

Junowy

9L88C

#0d

:obeg

ZT0ZSCCO0¥

welT SUTT

SEDIOANI ONIANVYILSLAO

SIYd T89FSLT-9SHANT

uotadraossa

TOT88 WN SIAOTID
aald SdddHDS TTZ

ONI ODIXIW MEN 40 O¥dE¥Id YYY

TOT88 WN SIAOTID
an1gd SddEHOS TCT

ONI ODIXEW MAN 40 OJIJHITA WYY

9%TT ¥806L XI QIOALVHLS

9%IT XO0d "O°d

HIYD d¥0 I 3 ¥

sweN

Y9 T6°LE0T

arvd
$I0L 26°LE0T
T0¥ZTIT¥0-A

TYd T9 0TLOT

arvd

$10L T9°0TLOT
z0%29220-a

g ¥$6°¢9¢C

arvd

$1OL %6 €9¢
189¥%5L2-9S

#DANT

6T:%€:G9T ¥2/60/S :23BQ




Sg€°C¢t
sg’Ce

€V Ee

TE€ SC6C
9L " TTLZ
9L TTLT
9L TTLT

LY 00T

6% €6

99 PTIT

6€°9T9

0Z " TL

08" ¥8C

86°C¢

66°0T

unowy

4

#0d

:abed

T80CSCZ0%
T80C€0T0¥%

£€T0CSCC0V
£10C52C0%
£1025C20%
€T0CS2T0¥

ws3I SuTl

YIANOD ¥4I ¥O4 INZWASUNEIWIHEA
JIAOD a¥dI d0d INAWISANIWIET

000-5S09LZ0T-TO0#
000-8226C0T-TO0#
000-0€Z6Z0T-TO0#
000-TTSTYOT-TOO#

SHDIOANT ONIANYISLOAO

ST¥88 WN NOLAY'ID
IS NOS¥dIJHL 9T1F

YIDYYD TAJIIHD

STy88 WN NOLAYID
LS NOSdHAAHL 9T¥

YIDYYD TAEIHD

L%90 68116 YD ¥YNIAVYSVYL

L%¥900T XO0d O 4

T0D “¥ES TYIDNYNIJ dYTIIJ¥EALYD

L806L X1 HNITXEL
IHFALS aNZ N 00¢€

JHAINID LI-0d SNINd

£87S€ TY WYHONIWITH

$090€8 XO€ "O°d 00T LdHA

D11 SNITIIE JLTI0JE0D
OTIIYYWY SETYS MONAL STANIDNAL
£€82S€ TY WYHONIWIIL

$090€8 XO0d "O°d 00T IdHA

D711 ONITIIE HLTIOJAOD
OTIIYYWY SHTIVYS MONAL S¥ANIDNHEL
€825t TV WYHDONIWJIH

$090€8 X0€ "O°d 00T I4dHA

DT SNITIIE HLYIOJIOD
OTIIYYWY SHTYS MONAL SYINADNIL

ST$88 WN NOLAY'ID
@ AYADW 8T9

NOSdWOHL AQNVIE

ST¥88 WN NOLAY'ID
ad AYADW 8T9

NOSJWOHL AQNYAE

ST%88 WN NOLAYID
INOdd S 20T

ATddns AdIavdd

ST$88 WN NOLAYID
ILNO¥A °S ¢0T

A7ddNs AFTavad

ST$88 WN NOLAYID

sSWeN

6T*%E:ST

TYd  0L° %9
arvd

$IOL 0L %9
$Z0Z290S

TYd €% €€
arva

$101L €% €€
$202S2y

TYd 65 090TT
arvd

$I0L 6S°090TT
6ELSEESE

Tdd  L¥°00T

arvd

410L L% 00T
$Z020€Y

Tdd 6% €6
arvd

$I0L 6% €6
0T¥680TOTYX

¢ §9°FTIT

arvd
$I0L S9°FIT
6ZTS60TOTYX

IYe 6€°9T9

arvd

$10L 6€°919
$06£60TOTYX
Tve 0T TIL

arvd

$I0L 0T TL

$Z02029

Ivg 08°%8C

arvd

$I0L 08 %8C

£-%202Z8T9

TYd  86°C€E

arvd

$10L 86 CE

6SST¥T

TYe 66°0T

arvd

$101L 66°0T

LOSETT

Tdd 9L°9

H#DANT
¥Z/60/S :93ed



L9T9 T¥T¥9 OW ALID SVYSNVA TYd ST 68Tt
L9Z6TY XO0d "0°d arvd
088299¢S8 14dEA SIOL ST 68TE
ST 68T¢E ¥T16C 18025220% FHTOO0D HATIIVIOAVAHA JIAONIVED STPTOELLOG

L9Z9 T¥T%9 OW ALID SVYSNYI TYd  S€°¢LT
L9Z6TH X0€ "O°d arivd
088799€¢58 I1d3A $IOL SE€°ZLI
SECLT $TT6C 8025220V (0T) SIIM AIV LS¥Id YIONITID $8TTHISLO6

ZZ06L X1 IdVYHIVA Tvd 2% 29
g8zT Xod od  dIvd
$I0L Z% $Z9

Zv° %29 10162 T80Z€S0TH ¥HITIIA MNYL B SYD 40 SNOTIVD 00¢ ‘0D THENA WIIINOJEA 866TH0¥%C
Z0T88 WN SIAOID TYd  $T°€LS
S68T X0d "0°4d arivd
z5°S6 6TT6C 9L0299%1¥ 54 NINAY SI0L PT-€LS
Z9LLY 6TTI6C 9L0T99V1¥ g4 TYONNY d9dId¥d dIdId HLITE NOIIYIOJdI0D SWH WN NIILSYE €SPT
§9°6ST 9088¢ ZOTZLOTOY 1SISSY HDAL/IWOW HLOWTI
6L°0T 90882 9L0TS220% ISISSY HDAL/SO¥IA IINY
PT° 98 9088¢ 9L0TESOTYH ISISSY HOHEL/IWOW HIOWIY
GL°TSE 90882 Z0TZZO0TO0¥ ISISSY HOHAL/IWOW HIOWIA L8ST T62Z08 0D ¥HANHA TYd  9L°658
L0 C¥ 90882 9.0Z89ST¥H ISISSY HDHEL/IWOW HIOWIY L8ST 1ddd  dI¥d
L0 2% 90882 9L0TSLITY I1SISSY HOHAL/IWOW HIOWTI $10L 9L°6S8
62°89T1 9088¢ Z0TZ90TOY ISISSY HDAL/IWOW HILOWHA TYILASOH DDINL D NYd ST9STC
ST¥88 WN NOLXVID TYg 00 FEE

1S NOSTIM 00Z  QIvd
$I0L 00 PEE
00" ¥EE LTTI62C 0T0Z80OTOF S00T HIVAAN ¥OIDNULSNI WAIA J=d SOOVMS SIINND  $ZOZETH

887 X0d "0O°d arvd

00°0%C 8CT6C STOCVOTIOY TYINZY ITINYA ¥VEA T JANVE IS¥IA SSO¥D 200T

TOT88 WN SIAOTID TYd CTT6PET
LS NIVW N TZ%T aivd
D11 ‘SNOILVTIHEI $I0L TT 6VET
CT 6TET v6L8C TOTZTOTO? ONIAHE0T ¥TAA ININNIIACD ALITIAID 6L

2Z06L X1 ILIVHINVA Y 00°00S6
S00C X0€ od arvd
$IOL 00°00S6
0070056 9C16C 9L02S¥807% SHSOH ‘ST00L ‘NdH /M @04 S66T IIVHIYA 40 ALID ¥202Z80S

STP88 WN NOLAVTID T 0Z°TL
1S NOSMIAJIAL 9T  AIvd
$10L 0T TL
0z TL 9€T62C 0T0ZZOTOP  HEONZNHINOD JAWANS WEIQ ddd 30T YIDNYD TAMAHD  Z-%T020T9

ST¥88 WN NOLAYID TYd 08 ¥%8C
LS NOSJdHAJIIL 9T¥ aivd
$IOL 08°¥8¢C

08" %8¢ 9¢T6C 0T0ZZOTO¥ FONTITANOD WIWWNS WHIA Jdd %08 YIDYYD TAIHHOD Z-%Z0C8T2
uUnowy #0d we3lI S|UTTI uotadraosaa SweN #DANT

€ :abegq SHDIOANI OSONIANVLSINO 6T:%€:ST %C/60/S :=3BA




¥6 X0d "O°d aIvd

S8°5€ 9€£88T 9.025220% SHITAANS SSLP8HANT SI¥¥d £ OIF SHINTD DW  SGL¥8
ST$88 WN NOLAYTID Tdd 6676

$6 X0d "O0°'d  dI¥d
SIOL 66°6

6676 9¢88¢ Z1025220% SI¥Yd 8¥%LP8HANI SIdY¥d £ 9Id STINTD DW  8¥LP8
STP88 WN NOLAYID Ve 967 %

6 X0d "O0°d  dI¥d
$10L 96° %

96" % 9€88¢C A ATAAZ SIdYd STLYSHANI SI¥¥d O£ 9Ig STINTID DWW  STL¥8
ST¥88 WN NOLAYID T¥d 94729

¥6 XO0d "0°d aIvd

9L°29 9¢88¢C 9L025220% SHIITAdNS 8¥9P8HANT SI¥vYd £ ©Id SHINTO DOW 8¥9¥8
ST$88 WN NOLAVYTID Tdd  S6°TT
v6 X0d "0°d aIvd

S6°TT 9¢88¢C 940CSCC0¥ SHITAINS 9TOV6HANTI S1¥Yd £ DId SHENTID OW 92998
ST¥88 WN NOLAVYID TYd %6708
¥6 X0d "0O°d aIvd

¥6°08 9€£88¢ Z1025220% SI¥Yd 06SV8HANI SIdYd £ ©Id SHINTD DW  065¥8
20694 XI OTIONY NS v $0° 8L
688¢€ Xod  QIvd
$IOL %0°8L
$0° 8L Z9L8T 9%0Z€0T0% SEITAANS ¥OLINYL 08LTLOPHANI ANYAWOD ¥AIYA QTAIIAYA  08LTILO®
0PLL8 WN NOLYI Tyd 00°TZEE
IS aNZ S 9ZZT  dIvd
SHDIAEAS ANIAODEY 3 ONINOLINOW  SLOL 00 TZEE
00°TZEE T€06C LOETLLYTY ONI¥OLINOW AQOLSND ALINOWHOD "S°¥'W  ¥20TTI0S
0¥LL8 WN NOIVI TYd 00 €18
IS dNZ °S 9ZZI  dIvd
SHDIAYES AJIAODIE 3 ONIYOLINOW  $I1OL 00 €T8
00° €18 T€06¢C LOETLLYTY ONIJOLINOW AQOLSAD ALINOKWWOD "S'd'W ¥Z0ZIO¥
$LLY TOSL8 WN HI YINVS TYd  ¥8°09S
PLLY X0g "O°d  aIv¥d
$10L ¥8°09S
$8°09S LLLBT TOTZTIOTIO¥ SEDIANES AANIOLLY SSO¥ NEHAALS 40 HDIAA0 MYT  $Z0COE¥
ST¥88 WN NOLAYID TYd 007225
ANVT QIIGANYW ¥9  aIv¥d

00°2cs 0568¢C 9L0CS2C0% ALLCd ¥ 1304 HLAEAZA NILSALC £€69T

$$TL8 WN OHDNVA OI¥ TYd 00°L6
AN Ld00D HLINZZ 000L aIvd
SHDIAYHES NOIILDITH JHIVWOLNY YHA $I0L 00°L6
007 L6 L0T6C 6T0CSOTOY 00T 40 TIOY - SYHMDILS TELOA I DONI ‘SNOISSHIAWI NI 67L6S

Junowy #0d wa3I SuUT] uot3dransaa sweN H#DANT

4 :obegq SHDIOANI SNIANVISINO 6T:%€:5T ¥%2/60/5 :93eQ



00°5LZ 91162 0T0ZSOTO¥ SAIAIA ~d DIY FONHITANOD SHILNNOD ODIXIW MIN S9T099¢
ST#88 WN NOLAYTID TYd L6 LT
$6 X0d "0°d aryd
SIOL L6°LT

L6 LT 9€£88¢C Z1025220% SId¥d ST6V8H#ANI SI¥Yd £ 5IF STINTD DH  ST6¥8
STP88 WN NOLAYID T9d  66°S

¥6 X0d "0°d  dIVd
S10L 66°S

667G 9€88C zZ10TSTZ0¥ SIAYd ZZ6V8HANI SI¥¥d 0 5I9 SHANTO DW  2Z6EH8
ST#88 WN NOLAYID TYd  $6°89

¥6 X0d "0°d aivd

¥6°89 9¢88¢ Z1T0252C0% SI¥Yd S68V8HANT SI¥dvYd £ DI SHINTO DN S6878

ST%88 KWN NOLAYTIO T¥d SO0'TET
v6 X0d "0°d aivd

SO"TET 9¢88¢C ZT0CSCC0¥ SI¥Yd 8€8V8HANT S1¥vYd L ©I9 SHANTD OW 8¢8%8

ST¥88 MWN NOLANYTID ¥d 6%°8C
v6 X0€ "0°d arvd

6¥°8C 9¢88¢C 2T0CS2Z0V SI¥Yd LT8V8HANI SI¥Yd [ ©9Id SHINTD OW LT8Y8

ST%88 WN NOLAVTIO T¥d 66 °6CT
¥6 X0d "0°d arvd

66°6CT 9¢88¢ ZT0CSCC0¥ SLYYd 806 ¥8HANT SI¥Vd £ ©Id SHINTID DKW 806%8

ST¥88 WN NOLAYID Tdd TL VL
ve X0d "0°d aivd

TL VL 9¢88¢ 9L0TSCT07% SHITAANS PS8V8HANT SI¥Yd [ DI SHINTD OW ¥S8%8

ST¥88 MWN NOLAWYTID vd 6¢€°8T
¥6 X0d "0°d arvd

6€°8T 9€88¢C ZT0TSTZOV SIMYd ¥68¥%8H#ANI SI¥Yd £ I SHINTD DK  ©6898
STP88 WN NOLAYTID TYd  66°S

¥6 Xod "O°'d  QI¥d
$IOL 667§

66°S 9€882 Z1025220% SINYd 68LVSHANI SIdvd £ ©I9 SHINTD DOW  68LYS
ST#88 WN NOLAYID TYd  99°2S

¥6 X0od "O°d arvd

997 ¢S 9¢88¢ ZT0CSCC0? SI¥Yd ZT8LV8HANI SI¥Yd £ DId SHINTD ONW Z8LV8

ST¥88 WN NOLAVYID TNd 66°8S
¥6 X0d "0°d arivd

6689 9¢€88¢C 21025220V SIIYd €9LP8HANT SI¥VYd [ ©Id SHINTD DWW €9L¥8
ST%88 WN NOLAYID Tv¥d S8°§9¢
Junowy #0d w3 SuT] - uotaydraonsag [weN #DANT

S :9beq SHOIOANI OSNIANV.LSINO 6T:%€:ST ¥»C/60/5 :93ed




€TI0 99ZSL XI SYIIYA TYd  9€° 19
€IT099 X0d "O°d  QI¥d
4101 9€°19
9€°T9 89682 9%0ZE0TO0% SdnD/JANLEAMS /ITWYEED /HEII0D I10dHEd HDIAJ0  TO0SHE0LE09E
€ITO 992SL XL SYTIIVA TYd 66 61T
€TT099 X0g "O°d  aIv¥d
$10L 66°6TT
66°6TT 8968C 600290T0% JOTIANT MOANIM HTIONIS OT# WOLSND 10d43d EDIAI0  TO0LPTISHTBSE
S§ZSS 8P€0€ VD VINVILY TYd  66°2CHT
GZSSO0T X0d od  aIvd
1IQTED HAVEL ENO TYLIdYD  $I0L 66°CTTYT
66°2CHT 90162 ZI0ZESOTY X0g T00L INTFHITADE ¥ TOOL NJFHIMON  S€9¥0SES

0Z0L8 KN SINYID TYd 00°0S
05 HIINS IAV LTIAESOOY "H 00L arvdd
MANTIYD YIDVOVY $10L 00°0S
00°0S STT6C 0T0Z90TO¥ sINQ HINITIAAY SID FIYVIIIAIY "S 19 DWN 0Z-%20¢
€008 €£€0088 WN SIIOED SYI TYd 00°SL
£000€ X0 "0°d ‘@Y £ DSKW arvd
JAS NOISNHIXHT HATIVIEJ00D NSKN $10L 00°SL
00°SL LS06C 0T0ZZOTOY NYQoo9 1 - SSYID ZECETHANT TFOHITIOD ALNAOD HOAH WN ZeeeT
€008 €0088 WN SHDONID SYI TYd 00°SL
€000€ X0od "O°d ‘Y £ OSW arvd
OAS NOISNIIXHT HATLVIEI00D NSKN $10L 00°SL
00°SL LS06T 0T0CZOTO¥ YIDIYD "D - SSYID 6STETHANI AOITIOD ALNNOD FOHAHE WN 6GCET
T0SL8 WN Hd YINYS Tvd  00°SLT
1S OFLSITYD ¥¥¥ arva
$10L 00°SLZ
00°SLT 91162 0T0ZTOIOY ONISTIIN "D DI HINFIHANOD SHIINNOD ODIXIW MAN €420-0TS

T0SL8 WN Hd YINYS TYd 007 SLT
1S OHISITYD ¥¥%  QIv¥d
4101 00°SLZ
00°SLT 9TT6C 0T0Z60TO¥ YIHOT S oFd IDONTIHAINOD SHIINNOD ODIXHW MAN  ¥6€0-T¥9
T0SL8 WN Hd YINYS TYd  00°SLZ
1S OALSITYD ¥¥%¥  AIVd
$I0L 00°SLZ
00°SLZ 91T6C 0T02Z0TO0¥ NOSJWOHL ~d ©Fd HEDNITITINOD SHIINNOD ODIXEW MAN  L9TO069€E
TOSL8 WN HA YINYS T¥d 00 SLZT
1S OZILSITYD ¥¥%¥  AIVd
$10L 00°SLZ
00°SLT 9TT6C 0T0ZZ0T0% YIDEYD D O HONHIHAINOD STIINAOD ODIXIW MAN  99T0-89¢€
TOSL8 WN HA YINYS TYd 007 SLZ
1S OZISITYD ¥P¥  AIYd
$10L 00°SLZ
00°SLT 91162 0T0ZS0TO¥ SYNETID DFY HONTIHINOD SHTINNOD ODIXHAW MIAN  T8T0-68¢€
T0SL8 WN Hd YINVS Tvd 00 SLT
1S OEISITYD %%y  QIvd
$10L 00°SLZ

JuUnowy #0d wo3I SUTT uotaydraosag SweN H#DOANT

9 :obeg SHDIOANI OSNIANYISLAO 6T:%€:ST ®Z/60/S :@3ed




00" PTIT

£€€°98¢

00" T9¢t

00°9%9

00°06T

LZ €T

2L 9T

TE 9
TL €L
67 %1

T6°0T

GZ02¢S0TY

@ JEIATY qdF3d - dNVYd0dd

L9TTO08 XO0d Od

ANYdOdd HTOVNNIG

arvd
$1OL 00" ¥TT
0L%TOPIN

§52026%607%

JMNYI HIMON QVLSIWY - INVJOodd

L9TT 08T%S OW ALID SYSNVX
L9TTO08 XO0d Od

ANVYA0dd HTOVNNIJ

TYg  £€°98¢C

arva

$I0L €€°98¢
TI$STOPIN

ZT0CSP80%

WILSAS SNIHIVAYE JIVdEY OL HSOH

L9TT 08IF%9 OW ALID SYSNVA
L9TT08 XO0€ Od

ANVd0dd HTDYNNIA

L9TT 08T¥9 OW ALID SVYSNYX
L9TT08 XOd€ Od

ANYJOdd HTOVYNNIA

L9TT 08T¥%9 OW ALID SVSNVX
LSTTO08 XO" Od

ANVA0dd HTOYNNIJ

ZT06L X1 ONVTIHSNH
yZe X0d "0°d

SWALSAS ¥IVY ONIHIVEYH HTANVHNYI

T9dd 00 T9€

arvd

$LOL 00°T9¢€
£ZPTOPTN

T¢d 00°9%9

arvd

$1OL 00°9%9
$ZHTOPIN

T9d 00°06T

arvda

$10L 00°06T
99€T0%IN

TYd 00°SL

arvd

$10L 00°SL

9068

600ZZ0T0¥ JOLDELOYA HDUNS/SUOSSIDS/SUAATOL

6002LOTOY

dFdYd A40D

€TTO0 99CSL XI SYIIVd
£€IT099 X0d "0°4d

10d3d HDILA0

arvd
$10L LZ 19
TOOVL6LBLESE

€TTO0 99¢SL XI SVITYd
£€TT099 X0d "0°d

10dHEd HOIdA40

€TIT0 99CSL X1 SYITYd
€TT099 X0d "0°4d

10d3d 451440

T¢d 66 6TT

arvd
SIOL 66°6TT
TO0TEETS909€

9L0C2S220%
9%02€0T0¥
600220TOY

SYHATOA/SATAYLS /JHATIYLS
SdND /SANLIAMS /IHNTIID /TFLI0D
¥HILSNA/IATIA €SN/FIYL

€TT0 99CSL XL SVITYQ
€IT099 X0d "O°d

L0dH3d HOILAC

€ITO 992S5L XI SVITVd
€TT099 X0d "0°4d

10d3d dDILd40

arvd

SIOL LT €2

TO00LEOBLEOIE
Tvd 2L 9T

arva

$10L 2L 9T

TO0E¥08LE0IE

Junowy

L

8968¢C
#od

:abed

9L02SCC0V

we3I SUTIT

SYAAT0L/SHIIVLS /JTTIVLS

uotadraosada

SHDIOANT ONIANYLSIAO

€TI0 99ZSL XL SVIIYd
£€TIT099 X0d "0°d

10ddd dOIdA40

2WeN

6T 9E:ST

arvd

$10L TS ¥S

T009€08L609€E
1Y T6° 0T

arvd

S10L T6°0T

T00ZH08LE0IE
#OANT

yZ/60/S :°3ed




957 9§ $5L8C §Z0Z6%60% Qi NAQAVH/AYLSIWY STOOTTTTZHLODY

0€° vt $SL8T SZ0ZESOTH NIVW QAFd €TOOTTTTIZH#IDDY
06°2L $SL8T GZ0ZTESOTH SINEETIID AFd CTOOTTTITZHLIOOY
99°6TT $SL8T 5Z0ZS$80%  SYWOHL dd NYAES OTOOTTTTZHLOOY
5L 9§ $SLST 5Z0ZS¥80% ANWEZAOd dd NYAAS 6000TTTTZ#IODY
8L LY 5.8 SZ0TESOTH YDENHES dddy 9000TTTITZHIDODY
oL L8 PSL8T STOZLSTTY® a4 FITIIANTED FOOOTTTTZHIDOW
T1°6L 5L8T SZ0ZESOTH NOINEY ddxyd €000TTTTCHIODY ST$88 WN NOLAYTID IYd P8 86%T
€0°8S ¥SL8T SZOZIPLOY SWE NITNGYD ZO000TTTTZ#IDDV 69¢ X0d  dIv¥d
06 0%T $SL8T SZTOZIVLOY @4 NITOAYD TOOTTTTZHIDDY S1OL $8°86%T
S6°TL ¥SL8T SZ0Z6%60%  TTEM dd AYLSIWY $TOOTTTTIZHLOOY DINMIDATE NIHLSEMHINOS 9856T
STP88 WN NOLAYTID T9d  TE€ 9TCT
1S NTOODNIT T arvd
$10L <CTE€°91ICT
zE€ 9TCT S6L8C TT0Z80TO¥ SEMIL MAN/SEONYHD TIO HDINAGHAS ANY FAIL W-XIS zezL
STP88 WN NOLAVTID g  €6°6CT
1S NTIOONIT T arvd
$10L €6°6CT
€6°6CT S6L8T TT0Z80TO¥ SHYIL MAN/SHONVHD TIO FOINGES ANV HIIL W-XIS szzL
ST¥88 WN NOLAYTID TYd 06 92T
1S NTIODNIT T arvd
$I10L 06°9ZT
06°92T S6L8T TT0Z80TO¥ YIVdT FIIL/SEONVHD TIO IDINMES ANV HYIL W-XIS yIZL
ST$88 WN NOLAVTID T9d 007 LOT
ANYT 1OTQdHEd ST arva
$10L 00°LOT
00°LOT SET6T 0T0Z60TO% FONTITANOD JAWWAS WATJ JHL TIFOT NOIYHS T-%202029
ST¥88 WN NOILXYTID TYd 00" 8Z%
ANV 1OTaEdEd ST arvd
$I10L 00°8Z%
00°82% S€T62C 0T0Z60TO0%F  EONIYHANOD JTWHWNS WHIA ¥IJ %08 TIAOT NOIYHS T-%2028T9
805L8 WN 3d YINVS IYd  00°SLZ¥
8YT-g# 'HANVID VWISIA HAY L arvd
$10L 00°SLZ¥
00°GLZ¥ ¥L0O6T TOTZTOTOP  AYUYTIYS ® SSYID NOILISOd JIVAdN QEINIOIPOONI ‘EDUNOSEY S vZ-2Z0T
ST¥88 WN NOLAYTID TYd 00°00ST
"1S NOS¥EAAEL 9TF  AIvVd
SHOIAYIS HNINVATD NJYL ¥v8d  $IOL 00 00ST
00°00ST €L88C TOTZEOTOY SEDIAYGHS ONINYITD OTIILNIL OqdEYIIT ¥Z0Z-¥
88TT T¥6EL MO NOWXOD Tdd  9L° LY
88TT X0d "0°d arvd
SIOL 9L L¥
9L LY $088¢C GZ0ZESOTY FDIANHES HNOHd €Z096T#IDDY ID1d $Z0OZTIOS
L9TT 08T¥9 OW ALID SVSNVA TYg  00°G6
L9TTO08 X0d Od  dIvVd
$10L 00°S6
00°S6 8068¢C SZT0ZT6Y60T MNYI HINOS AVISIWY - ZNYd0¥d ANYdOdd HIDYNNIJ ZYSTOPIN
L9TT 08T¥9 OW ALID SYSNVI TYg 00 PTIT
Junoury #0d we3I SUTT uot3dIansaq SweN  #DANT

8 :obed SEDIOANTI ONIANYLS.LNO 61:%€:ST ¥$2/60/5 :93eQ




SZ0Z67%607%

ATIHAM-IE EDIAYES ¥YHLSIWAA

DT ONITDOADHEE HIVIS-IT¥L

T6 LTL6

ST¥88 WN NOLAV'ID
INNILSHEHD T

NOLXAYTID 40 NMOL

TYd  T6°LTL6

SIOL T6°LILE

ST¥88 WN NOILAYID
LONLSHHD T

NOILAYTID 40 NMOL

ST¥88 WN NOLAYTID
av¥od SAVNW LT
ONITOO0D =

ONIIVHEH ONIEWNTd SITIVD WIL

ST?88 WN NOILAYID
LS NIYW TO06

AND 1T HHL

STy88 WN NOLAYID
IS NIYW TO06

AND LI HHL

ST¥88 WN NOLAYTID
IS NIVW TO06

AND LI HHL

STy88 WN NOLAYID
1S NIVW TO06

AND LI dJHL

arvd
$10L 0Z°8LT
$Z0Z60%

ST¥88 WN NOLAYID
LS NIVW TO06

AND II HHL

TYd 8% °609T

$I0L 8% 609T

Yy esT
67 26T
St vl
ST €9
8L 6L

Unowy

#0d

:obeg

ZO0TZP0TO¥ 1SISSY HOAL/IWOW HIOWHI
Z0TZ80TOY ISISSY HDOHEL/IWOW HLOWHA
ZO0TZP0TOY ISISSY HOAL/IWOW HLOWHI
ZOTZLOTOY ISISSY HDOHL/IWOW HIOWZA
9.02SCC0% ISISSY HDOHAL/SNAIA ILNY
9L0CESOTY ISISSY HOHL/IWOW HLOWHI
Z20TZZ0TI0¥ ISISSY HDHEL/IWOW HILOWHY
9L0783STY ISISSY HOHEL/IWOW HLOWHA
9L02SL9CY I1SISSY HOHAL/IWOW HIOWHY
Z0TZ90T0% I1SISSY HOHAL/IWOW HIOWHA
T80Z80TOY @IVANYLS SSANISNd S9€ #DIJ40
T80226509 IYANYLS SSHENISNd S9¢ HADIAAO
Z0TZ80TOY ISISSY HOHL/IWOW HIOWHA
ZT02€S0TY SI¥Yd HSOH dRWAd
SzZ0Z6Vv607 oY dd AYISIWY TTOOTTTIZHIOOY
5Z0ZS%80% HSNOH HAId NYAES 8000TTTTZHIOOY
GZ0zZSP80¥ TIAM HDS dd NYQES LOOOTTTTIZHIOOY
GZ0Z6%60% IVLS HYIA NHTAVH SOO0O0TTITTZHIOOY
SZ0CE0TOY g0sS JITIHHS TOOSTTTITZHIOOY
wo3I SdUTT uotadraosadg

SHOIOANT ONIANY.LSLNO

ST¥88 WN NOILAYID
88 X0d

“OD ONIAVIL ALIEDYMS

SweN

#OANT

6T:9€:ST ¥T/60/S :23ed




LOETLLYTY
8TOCLLYCY
LOETLLYCY

ONISNOH HIVWNI
ADYWIVHd HIVANI

0FPLL8 WN NOIVI
HAY @IO4AHJHEH ISVH ¥¥P

ONISNOH HIVANI ¥YHINID NOILNZLAA OQYNOTTIVM TIDIA

80Z HILS ‘EN aATd HISITIVD 0CPT

SNOIINTOS AYTIANVA

ST?88 WN NOLAVID
98% X0d "0O°d

JIAYIT AINNOD NOINN

ST¥88 WN NOLAYTID
98% X0d "0°d

FAAYET ALNNOD NOINN

L88T0 VYW NOLONIWIIM
009 XO0d Od

LSIIAINN

009 XO0d Od

LSITAINO

€T0CLOTOY
£T0C90TOY
£T0CZ0TO0%

SHOIAJES XIOMIAN
SHDINYHES MIOMIEN
SHDIAJHES MIOMIEN

955¢ 0CgSL XL SYTIYd
955¢€0C X0d

“ONI ‘SHIDOTIONHOHL JHATAL

95S€ 0CE€SL XI SYITVd
955¢€0C Xod

"ONI ‘SHIDOTONHDHL JHTAL

TLY ¥EMYEIA "O0°d
OIAYI¥L

TLP0 T€088 WN DNIWIA

TLYy ¥EMYEA "0°d
DIAVIdL

00°80T%Z 88L8C
CYAN 444 88L8C
0S°0C%% 88L8C
00°0009 [4N-Y4
T9 89 6068C
Z0°€8¢C 6068C
SS°"TO0T T088C
S5 T6 T088C
9% 0V £T68C
97" 0% £168C
€6 °8TET 6LL8BT
€6 8T¢ET 6LL8T
0L SPCT 6LLBT
T9°88 6LL8BC
ZT 6LE 0€88C
JUNOWY #0d

0T :abeq

wa3I |UT]

uotadrTaosaq

SHDOIOANI ONIANVLSLNO

L806L XI HNITXHL

Segz Xod "0°d  QIvd
$10L <CT 6LE
D17 ONITDADEM HIVIS-IAL  855CC
L806L XI ANITXAL TYd 00°28
g€z X0od "O°'d  aIvd
SWeN  #DJANI
6T:%€:ST ¥¢/60/S :23BQ

qIvd
$10L 9T €LL8T
$20220S

T¢d 0070009

$I0L 0070009

Tvd  T9°89
arvd
$I0L T9°89
0GTS¥

TYd SSTT0T

qIvd

$I0L SS°TOT
0Z08ST0S8T
T G5 T6
arvd

$IO0L SS°16
T6LYST0S8C
Tvd 9% 0%
arvd

$I0L 9% 0%
66LE9V-ST
T 9% 0%
arvd

$10L 9% 0%
Z06T9¥-5C

Tvd 95 €88¢€
aIivd

$IOL 95 €£88¢€
LE€8ET06680T



98°209¢ST »xxDONIDIOANT TYIOL**»

0€T88 WN SHTVILIOL TYd 6T V6T
L98 X0d "0°d arvd

6T V6T T968C CTOCTIVLOY JIVdEd OIAVd JTHHANYH SNOILYDINAWWNOD ¥DODNA Te6¢
0£7188 KWN SHTIVILIOL T9d 80°96C¢t

L98 X0d "0°4d arvd
SIOL 80°96C¢

80°96C¢ 1968C T80CLSTTY ONINWYEOOAd ‘SHI¥HLIVE 'SOIAVI SNOIIUDINNWKNOD ¥IDNA ov6¢€

LT 89 L8LBT 9L0TCTSCTY Tdandg

€1°8CTC L8L8T TTOC80TO¥ Tdng

0L " TOEET L8LBT v¥0CSCC0y Tang

T9°5CT L8L8T 9L0T89STY - 1Eng

TS°STT L8LBT TTOC6LEEY Tand

8€°0¢T L8L8T 9L0TESOTY pecistcs

86°67% L8LBT 9L0CS¥80Y Tandg

80°T6 L8LBT 9LOCTYLOY 1dng

€v 68T L8LBT TTOCEOTOY picish:s €6C9 L6TO09 TI WYIILS TOUVD TYE TTTL6SOT
v9°¢€8 LBLBT 0TOC¥0TO¥ jpicist:s €6C9 X0d Od aIvd

TT 08T L8LBT 9LOCTLSTTIY Tdndg SIOL CTT L6S9T
8% ¢t L8L8T TTOCOTTOY picisks JNVE XEM 0¥CTIL8Y96

9TTZ ¥8TSL XI SYIIVA Tvd 9€°886
9TTZ¥8 X0d Od  aI¥d
S1OL 9€£°886
9£°886 8588¢C zZ1025220% SINVd/SdITddns IND NIIYM Z062TT090Sd
9TTZ ¥8ZSL XI SYITIYA TYvd TZ GET
9TTZ¥8 X0d O0d  AIvVd
$I0L Tz°S€T
Tz S€T 85882 z1025220% SLIvd/SAITIANS I¥D NIIZIYM L08ZTTOE0Sd
9TTZ ¥8ZSL XI SYITIYVA TYg 8T 8T
9TTZ¥8 X0d Od  QIvd
$I0L 8T 8T
8T 8T 8588¢C z1025220% SI¥Yd/SHITddNs IVD NZIYM 8LLTZTT090Sd
9TTZ ¥87SL XI SYITIVd TYd €87 %S
9TTZ¥8 X0d Od  4Ivd
$10L €87 %S
£8° %S 8588C ZT0TS220% SIMYd/STIT4dNS IND NIIYM £€992ZTT0908d
9TTZ ¥82SL XL SYITYA TYd 0T LSV
9TTZ¥8 X0d Od  QIvd
$I0L 0T LS%
0T LS 8588C z1025220¥ SI¥vd/SdI17ddNs I¥D NZLIYM $99ZTT090Sd
9TTZ ¥8TSL XI SYIIVA Tvd -L9°LET
9TTZH8 XOd Od  dIv¥d
S1OL -L9 LET
-L9°LET 8588¢C z1025220% SIMYd/SHITddNs IVD NEDAYM 69T¥T0090SD
9TTZ ¥8ZSL XL SYITYd TYd  9€°SS¢€
9TTZz¥8 X0d Od  QIv¥d
$I0L 9€£°SS€

9¢€°§5¢ 8588¢C 210CSCeoy SL¥VYd/SEITddNs IYD NIIIYM S892TT090S4
Junouy #0d wa3T SuUT] uotadtaosaa sweN  #DANI
TT :abea SHDIOANT OSNIANYISINO 6T:%€:ST ¥C/60/S :23eQ





















